Public Document Pack

-

Qhaffia

ﬁ” elrie [E"
City Region

_OCAL ENTERPRISE

PARTNERSHIP

Wednesday, 1 September 2021

To: Members of the MCA - Local Enterprise Partnership and Appropriate Officers

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby invited to a meeting of the Sheffield City Regional Local Enterprise
Partnership to be held at virtually on: Thursday, 9 September 2021 at 11.00 am for the
purpose of transacting the business set out in the agenda.

\}l /f"""’é{‘ .

Dr Dave Smith
Chief Executive

You can view the agenda and papers
at www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

or use a smart phone camera

and scan the QR code:



http://www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/

Member Distribution

James Muir (Chair)

Nigel Brewster (Vice-Chair)
Lucy Nickson (Vice-Chair)
Alexa Greaves

Professor Chris Husbands
Gemma Smith

Neil MacDonald

Karen Beardsley

Angela Foulkes

Peter Kennan

Cathy Travers

Richard Stubbs

Joe Chetcuti

Tanwer Khan

Bill Adams

Professor Dave Petley
Michael Faulks

Dan Fell

Councillor Chris Read

Mayor Dan Jarvis MBE

Mayor Ros Jones CBE

Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE
Councillor Terry Fox

Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Representative for Higher Education
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
TUC Representative
University of Sheffield
Co-opted Private Sector
Member

Doncaster Chamber
Rotherham MBC

SCR Mayoral Combined Authority
Doncaster MBC

Barnsley MBC

Sheffield City Council

LEP

Board



MCA - Local Enterprise Partnership

Thursday, 9 September 2021 at 11.00 am

Venue: Virtually

Agenda
Agenda Subject
Ref No
1. Welcome and Apologies
2. Declarations of Interest
¢ In relation to any agenda item
¢ In relation to any activity since the last formal
meeting
¢ In relation to any forthcoming activity
3. Notes of last meeting
Strategic Development
4. Government Innovation Strategy
5. Inclusion Plan for South Yorkshire
6. South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy
7. Business Recovery and Growth Board Summary
Paper
Governance
8. Mayoral Update
9. Chief Executive's Update

For Information

Sheffie

d

City Region

Lead

James
Muir

James
Muir

James
Muir

F Kumi-
Ampofo, P
Johnson

F Kumi-
Ampofo

C
Blackburn

H Kemp

Mayor Dan
Jarvis

D Smith

Date of next meeting: Thursday, 4 November 2021 at 11.00 am

At: Virtually

*ARTNERSHIP

Page

19-24

25-30

31-92

93 -98

99 - 102

103 - 104



This page is intentionally left blank



MCA - LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON:
THURSDAY, 1 JULY 2021 AT 11.00 AM

MICROSOFT TEAMS

Agenda Item 3

Sheffield
City Region

IAWHLJLII_:IH |E-H_|
'f-il'irl t I i

Present:

James Muir (Chair)

Nigel Brewster (Vice-Chair)
Lucy Nickson (Vice-Chair)
Alexa Greaves

Professor Chris Husbands
Gemma Smith

Neil MacDonald

Karen Beardsley

Peter Kennan

Joe Chetcuti

Bill Adams

Professor Dave Petley
Michael Faulks

Dan Fell

Councillor Chris Read
Mayor Ros Jones CBE
Councillor Terry Fox

Officers in Attendance:

Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive

Dr Dave Smith
Dr Ruth Adams
Martin Swales

Interim Director of Transport,

Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Representative for Higher Education
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
TUC Representative

University of Sheffield

Co-opted Private Sector LEP Board

Member

Doncaster Chamber
Rotherham MBC

Doncaster MBC

Sheffield City Council

Housing,

Infrastructure and Planning

Andy Gates

Affairs
Helen George
Jenny Holmes

Felix Kumi-Ampofo  Assistant Director Policy

Assistant Director - Strategic Corporate

Assistant Director - Skills & Employment
Assistant Director for Strategic Transport

and Assurance

Sue Sykes Assistant Director - Programme and
Performance Unit

Daniel Wright Head of Communications & Marketing

Melanie McCoole Minute Taker

Apologies:

Cathy Travers

Richard Stubbs
Mayor Dan Jarvis MBE

Private Sector L
Private Sector L

MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team

MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team

MCA Executive Team

EP Board Member
EP Board Member

SCR Mayoral Combined Authority

Page 5



Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE Barnsley MBC

Gareth Sutton MCA Executive Team
Sarah Want Sheffield University
1 Welcome and Apologies

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.
Apologies for absence were noted.

2 Declarations of Interest

B Adams declared an interest in relation to the Mayoral Update, as the report
made reference to the support for the Union Learning Fund.

There were no other declarations of interest.
3 Notes of Last Meeting

The notes of the previous meeting were agreed to be an accurate record.

4 Questions from the Public
None.
5 Economy Presentation

Members received a presentation from F Kumi-Ampofo regarding the South
Yorkshire economy, which continued to bounce back from the COVID-19
pandemic. The full devastating impact and social effects of the pandemic were
still unfolding. As South Yorkshire was not predominately reliant upon the
hospitality and tourism sectors, it had been sheltered from the worst effects of
the pandemic. However, itwas considered that those individuals that had
previously been disadvantaged or high at risk, were now likely to be in a much
worse off position.

Members noted the increase in the number of jobs that had been posted in
Barnsley over the past couple of months. The smaller towns had tended to
increase the number of job postings being made due to the nature of the
vacancies i.e. warehouse and distribution. With the exception of Sheffield, the
number of people working from home in South Yorkshire was lower than the
national average. The proportion of employed individuals within South
Yorkshire that had been furloughed had been much lower in comparison to the
national average. Data had indicated that the region was above the national
average for unemployment at 5.4% in comparison to 4.6% for the UK.
However, Barnsley almost matched the national rate for unemployment. There
was a significant challenge regarding youth unemployment within the region.
The majority of individuals that had been furloughed due to the pandemic were
now returning back to employment. However, the Bank of England had
predicated approximately 500,000 individuals would not have a job to return to,
once the furlough scheme had concluded. The lowest paid individuals within

Page 6



the economy were moving into new jobs and into new industries. Recruitment
problems were being encountered within some sectors. Although there had
been a decrease in the proportion of mid and low ranking jobs within the labour
market pre-pandemic, this had been accelerated during the last year. A growth
in demand had been encountered for the higher level skill occupations.

The pandemic had significantly impacted upon the number of people using
public transport. The volume of traffic on the road network had either returned
to pre-pandemic levels or was higher. Data had indicated that the emission
levels had returned to pre-pandemic levels.

Members were referred to the people issues, which had been discussed as part
of the Strategic Economic Plan. The challenges that had been highlighted from
the data had remained and had been exacerbated by the pandemic. The data
had indicated that individuals with special educational needs, free schools
meals or living in deprived areas with low income levels had a much higher
school absence rate. South Yorkshire had more areas of deprivation in
comparison to the UK national average.

There had been an increase in the number of high street shop vacancies.
However, the standalone sectors i.e. convenience stores and small shops
within village high streets had improved. In comparison to the city centres,
villages continued to hold a steady position in terms of the vacancy rates.
Yorkshire and the Humber had the fifth lowest increase in terms of vacancy
rates across the country.

Those businesses that had been able to move their processes and delivery
onto an online platform had been able to adapt quicker and better to the
pandemic. Focus would be given to support the smaller businesses to enable
them to utilise e-commence. The demand for real estate was expected to fall
more over the coming years.

In 2020, the pandemic had driven a major economic disruption which had led to
a 10% contraction within the UK economy, which had been the largest
observed in the UK for 300 years.

Members noted the need for a greener economy by addressing the climate
emergency. There was also a need for a fairer economy for those most at risk
and disadvantaged i.e. younger people, lowest paid within the society, self-
employed, hospitality, non-essential retail, women, parents with young children
and ethnic minorities.

Data had indicated that Doncaster was the tenth highest place within the UK
where people were most likely to be pushed into debt. Careful thought was
required to provide support and interventions to those most in need of help.

J Muir commented that the priorities within the Strategic Economic Plan
remained valid, and the submissions that had been made to last year’s
spending review and the Renewal Action Plan all contained and reflected the
priorities, which would merit both scrutiny and action to the points raised within
the presentation. He highlighted the need to give focus to the particular
challenges to resolve the inequalities within the region that had been

Page 7



exacerbated by the pandemic.

P Kennan queried where the limited resources for public transport should be
targeted to point to the growth opportunities, and to what extent this was being
fed into the Bus Improvement Plan.

F Kumi-Ampofo commented that it was too early to determine the position
through the projections. He considered that even if there was a hybrid
approach to remote working, this would lead to greater problems for the
districts, towns and villages in terms of the urban centres. He suggested that
the Board should consider the role faced by the key urban centres. It was
noted that the transport decisions would need to be facilitated to accommodate
that working trend. He suggested the need to pause, to ensure that the
projections were the start of a trend. He was working with colleagues in
relation to the Bus Improvement Plan.

J Muir commented that the projections were based upon extrapolations, to
which the Board had an opportunity to make interventions.

In relation to the trends on emissions, Professor Husbands considered that the
impact of the pandemic had a massive effect on the labour market and the
emission levels were starting to return. He considered that securing both a
greener and fairer recovery would be extra-ordinarily difficult to secure. He
suggested the need to consider whether there was a requirement for further
inventions on greener and fairer issues.

K Beardsley referred to the decline in the lower skilled jobs which had been
accelerated as a result of the pandemic. She queried whether all of the
interventions were in place to ensure that the 18 — 24 year olds acquired all of
the relevant skills that were required by employers.

J Muir commented that the largest priority was to retrain and provide individuals
with the correct skill sets. He made reference to a number of jobs that had
been advertised within the SCR Team, one of which had been advertised three
times due to not being able to acquire the correct skill set. There was a need to
raise the skill sets to match the economic demand.

Councillor Read echoed the comments made. He considered that this was a
very important piece of work for the LEP, to be clear of the interventions that
could be made given the resources and influences of the Board, which over
time could be matched with the economic reality. He requested that the matter
be brought back to a future Board meeting.

J Muir considered that the issue should also be considered at the thematic
board level. He suggested that the Board should look at the green agenda and
the findings of the report presented today together with some of the initiatives
that had been considered at the Business Growth Board, to consider other
forms of green energy and how it could deliver a substantial reduction in CO?
emissions. Members noted that some of the areas within South Yorkshire were
amongst the sixth worst places of the UK pre-pandemic for air quality, together
with a steel industry which contributed to over 20% of UK initiatives. He
expressed his thanks to F Kumi-Ampofo for presentation given, and he wished

Page 8



to discuss the matter with him further off line, with a view to the Board
discussing the matter on a more frequent basis.

RESOLVED - That the Board discussed the key issues raised by the
presentation and considered what actions may be necessary to grow an
economy that worked for everyone.

Report on Public Transport

A report was submitted which provided an overview of the key opportunities
and challenges facing public transport in South Yorkshire, together with the
Government’s public transport policies and funding streams to deliver
improvements.

M Swales referred to the three broad policy issues and the context for public
transport changes. There had been a number of public transport challenges in
South Yorkshire pre-pandemic in relation to the commercial operation for the
bus network, the tram system and awaiting the major announcements for trains
with the Improving the Rail System (IRP). COVID-19 recovery was now a key
policy context, which had impacted on the local patronage around bus and tram
use and the funding received by the Government to provide support, together
with the uncertainty for future funding. Members were referred to the levelling
up growth agenda which had produced a number of funding opportunities, but
was a politically challenging agenda regionally to ensure that the region was
well represented in making its case for levelling up and to receive its funding
and support.

Members noted the following key points:-

e The Government had announced the National Bus Strategy, with a
requirement for a Bus Service Improvement Plan to be developed by
autumn 2021. The Bus Review had highlighted the major financial
infrastructure challenges faced around bus and tram.

e In relation to rail, the IRP was still awaited from the Government. There
were a number of large impacts for South Yorkshire which included the
Manchester Rail Recovery task force, which had been established post the
2018 challenges, with the system coming to a halt through the Manchester
Interchange and its effect on South Yorkshire using the direct link to
Manchester Airport.

e The details of the HS2 eastern leg were still awaited and would be included
within the IRP, together with the significant potential leverage of growth
opportunities for South Yorkshire and other parts of Yorkshire and the
whole eastern leg.

e The tram concession would conclude in 2024, and a forward look was
required to determine what the response would be together with the
commercial considerations. Consideration was also required to the tram
which was now reaching the end of its rolling stock.

e The Government Gear Change Strategy that had been announced in 2020
now faced a large emphasis on active travel. South Yorkshire had made a
very strong commitment to active travel.

e The Leveling Up Fund had been quickly announced, and the MCA had
submitted a bid for £50m in June 2021, which focused on improving the

Page 9



public transport passenger experience.

e Work was underway with the local authority partners to develop the South
Yorkshire proposal for the Intra-City Transport Settlement (ICTS), to make
a submission by the end of July 2021. However, the terms of reference
guidance was awaited from the Government.

Professor Petley referred to the commitment for all vehicles to have zero
emission by 2035. He queried the position in relation to the development of the
charging infrastructure.

M Swales commented that the charging infrastructure was broken down into
various areas i.e. how this could be undertaken for public transport and the
limitations for technology, public charging and home charging. Consideration
had been given for public transport and charging, which had formed part of the
LUF bidand ICTS. M Swales’ colleagues at the PTE were currently reviewing
the Government’'s Zebra Fund. There were limitations to the bus capability in
terms of electric vehicles; the layout of Sheffield still presented a number of
challenges. Work was underway between the local authorities to ascertain
what could be undertaken to provide support for the roll out and to make
funding applications. A report had been presented to the last MCA meeting in
relation to public charging infrastructure, where there would be a significant
investment. It was hoped that this would be rolled out to each of the localised
authorities as a standardised approach. Home charging was in its early stages
of consideration and further work was required.

Councillor Fox referred to the pressures faced by SCC in relation to the tram,
and he queried the opportunities through the ICTS funding. He referred to
active travel, some of which had been implemented within Sheffield, and he
suggested that consideration should be given to all of the options for opening
this up and to consider the policy of the COVID-19 recovery.

D Fell referred to the long term catalogue of aspirations that were trying to be
delivered. There was a need to make a case for public transport again within
the communities of South Yorkshire. He queried whether there was arisk in
trying to achieve this, and whether there were any emerging thoughts as to how
this could be tackled to ensure that the demand was there.

M Swales commented that attempts would be made to exploit every opportunity
in terms of the ICTS to support the public transport agenda. Discussions were
underway between the local authorities regarding the future of tram investment,
whilst giving consideration to the future of the tram and to sustain the current
infrastructure. There was a need to push the active travel agenda whilst having
the correct balance interms of the economic recovery. It was anticipated that
the Government would shortly publish the carbonisation agenda. A united
position was being taken by P Kennan, the LEP Board, Leaders and Mayor
Jarvis MBE to push and make the case for public transport investment, and to
seek out and respond to every funding opportunity that was available. The
PTE was undertaking a high volume of work in an attempt to gain the public’s
support to the public transport agenda.

P Kennan expressed his thanks to M Swales for presenting the report, and to
the whole transport team for their diligence and commitment during this

Page 10



challenging time. He requested an update in relation to the Bus Review and
the integrated planning housing policy, which related to ensuring that the bus
service was thought about during the decisions on future development, in
particular when new employment sites were situated near high
volume/frequency bus routes. In relation to the messages regarding the safety
of public transport, he queried whether there was anything that could be
undertaken more closely with the Directors of Public and Health and through
the PTE to convey the message to all possible channels. He suggested that
focus should be made to integrated smart ticketing, as a key area to increase
the patronage of buses.

In terms of the integrated planning housing policy, M Swales referred to the
work undertaken with colleagues across the MCA. He suggested that careful
consideration should be given to contacting the Directors of Public Health, with
a view to them supporting the messages regarding the safety of public
transport. He added that Mayor Jarvis MBE and the Leaders had all requested
consideration be given to the different ways in which the public within South
Yorkshire could be encouraged to return back onto public transport.

B Adams appreciated the work being undertaken. He considered the need to
be slightly more ambitious in what was envisaged to be achieved in Sheffield,
whilst keeping a radical approach for public transport.

J Muir commented that the challenge for transportation in South Yorkshire was
the level of car usage. He appreciated and observed the huge amounts of
effort undertaken to optimise the different elements of the public transport
system. However, he queried how this linked up to tackle the problem of car
usage, the contributing factors and initiatives to achieve a reduction. He hoped
that consideration would be given to hydrogen buses. He did not observe an
overall umbrella to tackle the fundamental issue of reducing car usage.

M Swales referred to the need for short, medium and long term approaches to
be applied. Some of the short term approaches had recently been flagged up
by the local communities. Members were referred to the very planned and
logical approach that would be considered politically, to determine what was
the best option for South Yorkshire.

Mayor Jones CBE commented that this related to reliability and coverage of the
public transport network. Doncaster had the largest hectare coverage in South
Yorkshire, and therefore many people were unable to use public transport for
the whole of their journey. She considered that the solutions addressed all of
the points raised.

J Muir added that the level of investment that was requested was reliant upon
Government funding. He expressed his thanks to M Swales, his team and P

Kennan for all of their efforts. He hoped that public transport issues would be
discussed at a future LEP Board meeting.

RESOLVED - That the Board discussed the current context for public transport

planning and how public transport investment could contribute to the delivery of
the Strategic Economic Plan.

Page 11



Skills Programmes

A report was presented which provided an update for the LEP Board across the
range of the MCA skills and employment activity. The report reflected upon the
discussion at the Education, Skills and Employability Board meeting held on 15
June 2021 and included a number of the decisions and actions that had been
agreed at that meeting. An overview of the previous decisions and work that
was already in train were provided within the report, together with updates on
the two LEP programmes — Skills Bank and the South Yorkshire Careers and
Enterprise Company Hub (formally Enterprise Advisor Network).

Councillor Read commented that he was happy with the recommendations
outlined within the report. He requested an update on the South Yorkshire
Jobs Fund, in terms of its development and a timeline as to when this may
become operational.

H George referred to the small group that was being established to drive
forward the South Yorkshire Jobs Fund programme and to provide strategic
direction; the group would meet in July 2021. Soft market testing would shortly
commence to establish how the payments could be made. Funding had been
made available through the gainshare. It was envisaged that a pilot testing
phase would be undertaken during autumn 2021, dependent upon the results
of the soft market testing.

In relation to the economy presentation that was made at today's meeting, J
Muir commented that many of the programmes had been created and
implemented on the back of the RAP. He queried whether this was enough in
terms of the scale of funding to address the skills issue.

H George considered that there was not enough funding. For example,
Members noted the huge amount that could be undertaken for the
apprenticeships through the gainshare funding and working with the
apprenticeships levy. There was a need for a good robust strategy to be
implemented.

J Muir queried whether the programmes should be undertaken on a much
larger scale, or whether there was a need for supplementary programmes.

N Brewster commented that some of the employers could cease their training
budgets, and therefore the Skills Bank was the most sensible option. Members
noted the work underway to develop a task force approach to support
redundancy and the development of the South Yorkshire Jobs Fund. The Skills
Strategy would be developed to work both quickly and deliberately with a focus
on the future. He expressed concern that this related to the education, skills
and employability thematic area.

Members noted that the matter would be considered at the thematic board, and
a more lengthy discussion would ensue at a future LEP Board meeting.

In relation to the South Yorkshire Job Fund, B Adams considered that it could

be beneficial for the LEP Board to have an input onto the steering committee
with the local authorities’ employer representatives, in relation to influencing the

Page 12



training and skills needs of businesses across South Yorkshire.

H George was happy for B Adams to sit on the SCR Skills Board for
Redundancy.

J Muir gave thanks to H George for the presentation and the useful discussion,
with a view to her coming back to a future LEP Board meeting.

RESOLVED - That the Board:-

1) Noted the update on devolved Adult Education Budget commissioning.

i) Noted the proposals for the development of a South Yorkshire Skills
Strategy.

i) Noted the update on Careers Advice and Guidance.

iv) Approved the development of a full specification for the next iteration of
Skills Bank based on the recommendations of the ESEB covering the
principles, economic and social value outcomes and the operating model
which were set out at Appendices C and D to the report.

V) Noted the proposal for a Task and Finish Group to consider skills support
for redundancy.

vi) Noted the update on the proposed South Yorkshire Jobs Fund programme
for those unemployed for 6 months.

Rebranding and Name Change

A report was submitted following the agreement made in principle at the MCA
meeting held in January 2021 to the rebranding of the MCA which would reflect
the organisation’s core business and decision making that primarily affected
South Yorkshire. At the MCA meeting held in June 2021, it had been agreed to
rename the organisation to the ‘South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority’
and the office of Mayor’s title to be changed to ‘Mayor of South Yorkshire’. This
would provide an opportunity for the MCA, LEP and MCA Executive to review
its strategy and ambition to promote South Yorkshire to potential investors,
talent and visitors.

Members received a presentation from D Wright, and the following points were
noted:-

e Significant work was underway amongst the South Yorkshire local
authorities to attract visitors and investment of talent to the region. One of
the issues faced on a regional basis was that this had not been joined up
or amplified and that it was partially incomplete. The challenge to be
overcome was in relation to the specialisms, as there was not a true
understanding of the people trying to be reached or their preconceptions of
South Yorkshire.

e The brand needed to reach, influence and engage with a broad range of
audiences i.e. residents of South Yorkshire, the business community and
investors, students and skilled workers, Government ministers and policy
makers.

e There was a requirement to develop a strategy which addressed the
guestions of why to live in South Yorkshire and why to invest in the region.

e Consideration would be given to developing the strategy to gather

Page 13



audience insights, develop a complete and compelling narrative, to
establish clear roles and responsibilities, build upon leadership and
legitimacy, to amplify and support local identities, specialisms and success
stories from across South Yorkshire.

e The role of the LEP would be to draw upon the expertise and networks
which would inform the strategy development, to convene expertise and
motivate coalition to promote the specialisms and success stories of the
region, and to support the storyteling and amplification of South Yorkshire.

G Smith commented that she was fully supportive of the report. She
considered that the region had many strengths, however there was a need to
raise awareness. She considered that it was very important that an
independent review should be undertaken to assist with the audience insight
together with a 360° view to speak to the internal Leaders. She suggested that
consideration should be given to who would own the branding moving forwards.
She queried whether consideration should be given to the Place Board which
had been embraced by other areas. She was happy to provide assistance in
relation to the rebranding.

D Wright welcomed G Smith’s expertise and assistance in relation to the
rebranding. In relation to the ownership of the brand, he considered that this
was an open question which would be brought back to the Board. He agreed
to the suggestion of an independent review of the audience insight and a 360°
view.

J Chetcuti commented that the independent review of the audience insight was
the foundation to ensure that the branding was correct for the region. As the
region was so diverse and the range of different audiences, he queried the
measures to be taken to ensure that the South Yorkshire stories reflected the
needs of the different audiences for the region.

D Wright highlighted the need for the development of a framework which could
to be worked towards, which would be developed in more detail with different
messages to be carried to those different audience groups.

RESOLVED - That the Board:-

i) Provided feedback on a possible approach to developing a place brand to
promote the region’s interests.

i)  Nominated a Member to support the brand development work with the
MCA Executive.

i) Provided views on the scope of audience insight and research to develop
the strategy.

Welcome to Yorkshire Campaign

A report was presented in relation to the Welcome to Yorkshire Campaign
(WTY). In order to deliver the manifesto commitment of Mayor Jarvis MBE, to
promote South Yorkshire’s visitor economy and in support of a sector hit hard
by the COVID-19 pandemic, the MCA Executive was working with WTY and
the four South Yorkshire councils on the re-opening of the visitor economy
campaign. This would help to promote the region’s urban centres, major

Page 14



10

attractions, and cultural and heritage offer to domestic and regional visitors.

The MCA/LEP had engaged with WTY in late summer 2020 to develop a
campaign which would support the reopening of the economy, with focus given
to the visitor destinations around South Yorkshire. The WTY campaign, which
had been delayed due to the pandemic, would be launched w/c 5 July 2021.

Major Jones CBE commented that she was the SCR representative on the
Welcome to Yorkshire Board, and therefore she would not take part in the
discussion.

Discussions were underway with J Muir, his fellow LEP Chairs within Yorkshire
and WTY to ensure that WTY had re-evaluated their role to fit more closely with
the LEP agendas and to ensure that there was not an assumption for WTY to
promote themselves as a Yorkshire tourist board. It was incumbent for WTY to
come back with a stronger rational as to why the LEPs would collaborate with
WTY, and to ensure that measures had been implemented to enable the LEPs
to work with WTY in a manner which would benefit South Yorkshire and not
disproportionately elsewhere.

N MacDonald commented that J Mason, Chief Executive of WTY had talked
with the private sector members on WTY. The private sector members had
welcomed the work to be undertaken, whilst acknowledging the volume of work
to enable the private sector members to feel included, as previously WTY had
been very Leeds and North Yorkshire bias.

RESOLVED - That Members noted the content of the report and indicated their
interest in supporting and engaging on programmes such as this in future
meetings.

Business Development Pipeline

A report was submitted which recommended a selection of three identified
schemes onto the pipeline in order that Business Cases may be developed.
The schemes which related to existing companies based in South Yorkshire
which sought to grow, collectively offered the potential for 200 new jobs,
leveraging private sector investment of over £100m. A total cumulative
investment of £11.6m was sought, at an average cost of £67k per job. Two of
the proposed schemes were within the cultural and digital sector and the third
scheme was an Advanced Manufacturing proposition. The ongoing
programme of engagement with businesses had been led by the LEP Chair.

S Sykes commented that at this early stage, all three of the proposed schemes
appeared to be well aligned to the desire to support the creation of well-paid
jobs. In orderto secure the funding, the proposals would need to be taken
through the MCA'’s assurance processes together with the identification of a
funding source. In the event that the businesses were accepted onto the
pipeline, it was anticipated that full business cases would be submitted within
the current financial year.

Members noted that to date, a pipeline of propositions had been developed
worth £132m from 27 businesses, with no source of funding currently available.

Page 15



11

12

It had been stated at the recent SCR Business Recovery and Growth Board to
begin to consider ways to enable the pipeline to be prioritised.

N MacDonald was supportive of the continuation of the pipeline process.

RESOLVED - That the Board accepted the schemes detailed within Appendix
A to the report to the programme pipeline, noting that projects would only be
supported if future funding was received and assurance requirements were
met.

Annual Report 202021 and Delivery Plan 202122

A report was presented to seek approval of the LEP Annual Report (2020-21)
and Delivery Plan (2021-22) which had been combined into a single

publication. The Annual Report outlined what the LEP had delivered in the past
year for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire, together with a
summary of what was aimed to be delivered in the coming year.

Members noted that 2020/21 had been the Local Growth Fund’'s (LGF) final
funded year. Forevery £1 of LGF investment made into the economy there
would be a further £2.35 of match funding generated for the economy. A total
of £24 for every £1 invested had been returned from the LGF programme to
date. Once all of the outputs had been achieved, it was predicated that this
would return to £67 for every £1 of LGF invested.

P Kennan considered that the highlights section of the report was in fact
statements of the work undertaken. He suggested that the highlights section
should refer to more positive issues i.e. to deliver an improved train service to
London as result of the efforts made over the last 3 years through the LEP,
MCA, PTE and other private sector bodies, together with the work underway on
parts of the Northern Powerhouse Rail to benefit Rotherham and Barnsley
Dearne Valley.

A Gates agreed with the comments made by P Kennan.

RESOLVED - That Members endorsed the content of the LEP Annual Report
(2020-21) and Delivery Plan (2021-22) and provided feedback where required.

Mayoral Update

A report was submitted which provided Members with an update on key
Mayoral activity relating to the economic agenda.

Updates were provided on:-

The COVID-19 pandemic.

Plan for the North.

A greener South Yorkshire: Investing in our bus network.

A fairer South Yorkshire: The launch of the Ownership Hub.

A stronger South Yorkshire: Continuing the workers’ training programme.

On behalf of Mayor Jarvis MBE, Dr Smith highlighted the rapid increase in the

Page 16



13

number of COVID-19 cases within South Yorkshire as a consequence of the
new variant, although this had not led to increased hospitalisations. The
increase in the number of new cases had particularly been encountered
amongst young people but at present, this had not created a crisis within the
National Health Service.

Dr Smith referred to the work undertaken by Mayor Jarvis MBE and others in
making the case for levelling up through the Plan for the North. Members

noted the great deal of activity underway on a number of spheres in the north of
England regarding how to influence the Governance’s levelling up agenda. A
White Paper was anticipated to be released in autumn 2021. Similar
discussions were being undertaken at the NP11 Group regarding how to
influence and assist the Government to understand the needs of the north of
England.

RESOLVED - That Members noted the update.

Chief Executive's Update

A report was presented which provided Members with a general update on
activity being undertaken by the LEP outside of the agenda items under
discussion.

Updates were provided on:-

e Levelling up Fund.

e Community Renewal Fund bid.
Adult Education Budget.

e Business Advisory Group.

Dr Smith highlighted the importance for the continuation of the Business
Advisory Group, and to continue to encourage to facilitate a business network
which supported and informed the agenda and the actions taken as an
Executive.

J Muir expressed his thanks to Dr Smith and his team for the preparatory work
undertaken inthe reports presented at today's meeting. In relation to the
Annual Report and Delivery Plan, he commented that this reflected the
collaborative framework and the achievements that had been made, despite
the hardships and challenges that were faced. He took the opportunity to thank
everyone present at the meeting for all of the work undertaken and the strong
sense of collaboration as the LEP Board, which had also been achieved
through the agreement made between the Leaders for a collaborative
devolution framework in 2020.

RESOLVED - That Members noted the update.

I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting.

Signed

Page 17



Name

Position

Date

Page 18



Agenda ltem 4

City Region

Local Enterprise Partnership
09 September 2021

Government Innovation Strategy

Is the paper exempt from the press and public? No

Purpose of this report: Discussion
Funding Stream: Not applicable

Is this a Key Decision? No

Has it been included on the Not a key decision

Forward Plan?

Director Approving Submission of the Report:
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive

Report Author(s):
Paul Johnson
Paul.johnson@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

Executive Summary:

The Government has replaced its Industrial Strategy with an Innovation Strategy. It has
a clear and strong link to the SEP and thus cements the LEP’s strategic alignment with
the Government on innovation. There are laudable aims in the strategy, but also a lot of
previously announced funding. Whether (and the extent to which) the upcoming
Spending Review will include new investment remains to be seen. The 116-page
document sets the scene for what is to come, e.g. the R&D Place Strategy, and covers a
lot of ground. This will please most stakeholders; however, so far, there is no defined
role for MCAS/LEPs.

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?
The SEP focuses on innovation to deliver the step change in South Yorkshire’'s

economy. It is positive that there is policy alignment at the national level. However, it is
imperative that funding is made available to back up the objectives in this strategy.

Recommendations:

Page 19



1. That the Board reviews the summary of the Government’s Innovation Strategy
and
a. Considers the emerging approach on innovation, provides a steer, and
sets out what role it will play within this.

b. considers how it can galvanise activity to deliver more innovative start-ups,
scale-ups and clusters.

Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel
Business Recovery and Growth Board 01 September 2021

1. Background

1.1  InJuly, at the AMRC, the Government launched its Innovation Strategy. It sets out
plans to cement the UK'’s position as a world-leader in science, research, and
innovation. It is a long-term plan to boost private sector investment across the UK
and create the right conditions for all businesses to turn world-leading science into
new products and services. It is a strategic document with a long-term vision to
put innovation at the heart of its plans and make the UK a global hub for
innovation by 2035.

1.2  The strategy focuses on how to make the most of the UK’s R&D and innovation
system through four pillars:

e Pillar 1: Unleashing business — we will fuel businesses who want to
innovate

e Pillar 2: People - we will make the UK the most exciting place for
innovation talent

e Pillar 3: Institutions and places - we will ensure our research, development
and innovation institutions serve the needs of businesses and places
across the UK

e Pillar 4: Missions and technologies — we will stimulate innovation to tackle
major challenges faced by the UK and the world and drive capability in key
technologies

2. Key Issues

2.1  As expected in a strategic Government document, there is a lot of previously
announced projects and funding streams. However, there are some new
announcements that are pertinent for the LEP:

¢ In the North of England, £22.6 million will help the Advanced Machinery &
Productivity Initiative to drive innovation for the UK’s advanced machinery
manufacturers to put them at the cutting edge of emerging technologies
such as robotics.

o £25 million of funding for the Connecting Capability Fund will help drive
further economic growth through university-business innovation, and eight
new Prosperity Partnerships will establish business-led research projects
harnessing the power of science and engineering to develop
transformational new technologies that benefit companies, with £59 million
of industry, university and government investment.

e A new role for Innovate UK in innovation adoption and diffusion.

e Expand Innovate UK EDGE, working alongside Growth Hubs in England.

Page 20



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

e Eight new Prosperity Partnerships to establish business-led research
projects to develop transformational new technologies, with £59 million of
industry, university and government investment.

What it means for South Yorkshire

The four pillars of the strategy provide opportunity for LEP with regards to how the
SEP is implemented. The document rightly focuses on the role of business,
people, places and technology in innovation. The strategy does not pick specific
sectors to focus on but instead seeks to back innovation and address societal
challenges. This is fully aligned with the SEP which also focuses on how to
accelerate the pace of innovation throughout the economy irrespective of sector.

There is also lot of emphasis in the strategy on improving the role between
business and academia particularly in translational research, testing and
prototyping and in leadership and management support.

The commitments in the SEP on the enabling conditions needed for innovation to
flourish correlate neatly with this document. There is emphasis on supporting
innovative start-ups and scale-ups, and a welcome focus on the adoption and
diffusion of innovation. This links with the MIT REAP project and how the LEP is
working to create and support more Innovation-Driven Enterprises (IDEs). The
MCA has commissioned work to explore how entrepreneurs seeking to start-up
IDEs can be better supported. The Renewal Action Plan’s commitment to equity
investments in IDEs also link well with this strategy’s focus on scale-up
opportunities of IDEs. There is scope to work with Government to deliver this at
scale in South Yorkshire, and trigger the step change the local economy needs.

There are seven identified technology areas of UK strength and opportunity:
Advanced Materials and Manufacturing, Al, Digital and Advanced Computing,
Bioinformatics and Genomics, Engineering Biology, Electronics, Photonics and
Quantum, Energy and Environment Technologies and Robotics and Smart
Machines. One clear area of opportunity to engage Government on is Advanced
Materials and Manufacturing — South Yorkshire has unique strengths here, and
engagement with Government on how to capitalise on this opportunity should be
worthwhile.

It is positive to see an emphasis on translational research, with South Yorkshire
again well placed to lead on this, especially with the Government’s focus on
levelling up across the UK through innovation. The emphasis on business-led
development of innovation is also welcome.

The R&D Places Strategy has been delayed, but indications are that this will
review how to deliver levelling up through innovation via stakeholders. There is a
commitment to do this over the “next few months”. It is welcome that levelling up
is referenced through innovation and there is an opportunity here to craft and sell
the South Yorkshire story in a way that leads to greater resources and powers to
act. This could be to the focus of engagement with Government officials, as it is
crucial that the efficiencies of scale provided by regions like South Yorkshire is
acknowledged and LEPs and MCAs work with Government to deliver the
ambitions of the innovation strategy.

Page 21



2.7

2.8

2.9

3.1

The strategy has set the scene for more business-led R&D and place-led
innovation investment and it is imperative that these laudable objectives are
matched with significant levels of funding in the upcoming Spending Review,
especially outside of the Golden Triangle of the Greater South East. There must
be a step-change in place-based funding with MCAS/LEPs as a key delivery
partner.

Inclusive innovation is briefly mentioned in the document and it is proposed that
the LEP considers its importance and relevance in South Yorkshire. Inclusive
innovation in South Yorkshire could be about broadening participation in
innovation and spreading the benefits more equitably, with a particular focus on
more deprived places and people. The Innovation Strategy refers to this but does
not go into any detail. A policy paper on inclusive innovation is being developed
as part of the Inclusion Plan.

Emerging SY Innovation approach

Based on research, evidence, engagement and previous experience, the
emerging approach recognises that there are 3 elements to innovation, in
response to the government’s strategy. This is based on the triple helix model of
innovation and focuses on interactions between the public sector, academia and
business. These interactions (public sector — academia, public sector — business,
academia — business, public sector — academia — business) have been proven
over time to foster accelerated economic and social development.

University Funding and

Strategic demands

Industry

New Productideas,
Innovations

Government

Jobs, Taxes,
infrastructure

Source: Kimatu, J.N. - Kimatu, J.N. Evolution of strategic interactions from the triple to quad helix innovation models for sustainable development in the era of
globalization. J Innov Entrep 5, 16 (2016). https://doi.org/10.1186/s13731-016-0044-x

This emerging approach is crystalising in three main areas

e the approach to creating the enabling conditions for innovation driven
growth - R&D, clustering, ecosystems, technology deployment within
business, business to business activity, catapults etc

e the approach to conversion / realising the economic benefit locally and
inclusively

e the clarity, persuasiveness and credibility of the South Yorkshire story and
experience.

Options Considered and Recommended Proposal
This paper aims to inform and facilitate a discussion and lead to agreed actions.

Option 1
Do Nothing — adopt a passive approach. Wait and see if there is a role for LEPs.

Page 22


https://doi.org/10.1186/s13731-016-0044-x

3.2

3.3

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

Option 1 Risks and Mitigations

The risk is fuelling a perception that the LEP has no conviction in its own SEP.
Additionally, it could be a missed opportunity as the Government looks to
progress with Innovation Deals across the country.

Option 2

Do Something — within the context of developing delivery plans for the SEP,
exploratory work will look at how to deliver more start-ups, scale-ups, clustering,
supply chain, and ecosystem development, based on the emerging approach
above, and aligned to the Government’s strategy on innovation.

Option 2 Risks and Mitigations

There is a risk that South Yorkshire is left behind other areas in the North. Some
other LEPs are already more advanced with their internal infrastructure for
innovation (e.g. innovation boards), so exploratory work by itself may still not be
enough to close the gap. To mitigate this, actions must be identified, agreed and
quickly implemented to capitalise on the opportunity presented by this strategy.

Option 3
Do More — same as option 2, but also mount a lobbying campaign to seek to be a

commissioning / investment partner with government, especially to areas with
clear links such as Advanced Materials and Manufacturing.

Option 3 Risks and Mitigations

There is a risk that a lobbying campaign may consume valuable resources and
time still not yield much, especially with the risk of Government still focusing on
Covid-19, its infrastructure-led recovery plans and other competing priorities in
Autumn, such as the Comprehensive Spending Review.

Consultation on Proposal

No formal consultation at this point but significant engagement taking place to
shape ideas and possible actions.

Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision:

It is imperative that the exploratory work and the innovation delivery plans referred
to above are completed and approved by the end of March 2022 so that
implementation can begin in earnest. Subsequent Board meeting will receive
progress updates.

Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice

N/A

Legal Implications and Advice

N/A

Human Resources Implications and Advice

N/A

Page 23



9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice
9.1 NA

10. Climate Change Implications and Advice

10.1 N/A
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice
11.1 N/A

12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice.

12.1 None at this time, but subject to discussions regarding partnerships and lobbying
this strand of activity could be developed

List of Appendices Included
None

Background Papers:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment
_data/file/1009577/uk-innovation-strategy.pdf

Page 24



Agenda Item 5

Sheffield
»ity Region

MAYORAL

COMBINED AUTHORITY

Local Enterprise Partnership
09 September 2021

Inclusion Plan for South Yorkshire

Is the paper exempt from the press No

and public?

Purpose of this report: Discussion
Funding Stream: Not applicable

Is this a Key Decision? No

Has it been included on the Not a key decision

Forward Plan?

Director Approving Submission of the Report:
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive

Report Author(s):
Jonathan Guest
Felix Kumi-Ampofo

Executive Summary:
Update on the development of the South Yorkshire Inclusion Plan, with progress notes on the
Employer Contract and Progressive Procurement themes.

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?

Unlocking opportunities for excluded groups is integral to achieving a transition towards a
sustainable economy and society. Inclusion is an intrinsic element of building a stronger, greener
and fairer economy in South Yorkshire.

Recommendations:
1. That the Board considers the progress made to date
2. That the Board agrees to lead the engagement phase of the Employer Contract theme
(and the Inclusive Innovation theme later).

Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel

Business Recovery and Growth Board 28 October 2021
Education Skills and Employability Board 21 October 2021

Page 25



Housing and Infrastructure Board 26 October 2021

Transport and the Environment Board 21 October 2021
1. Background
1.1 A more proactive approach is needed to ensure growth is more inclusive. The

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

Inclusion Plan is being developed to outline what needs to be done, and how, with
and for whom this occurs.

Inclusion is one of the three pillars (policy objectives) adopted by the MCA and
LEP in the SEP, which outlines the plan for stronger, greener and fairer economic
growth.

The SEP also sets out several aspirations around establishing social value
policies to govern both “stakeholder behaviours and policy outcomes” through the
vision to “grow an economy that works for everyone....... and enhance quality of
life for all” and to work to ensure that all residents have a fair opportunity to
participate in and benefit from growth.

The approach and agreed parameters for the Inclusion Plan were agreed at the
May 2021 LEP board. The Plan seeks to focus on the fairer (inclusive) outcomes
agreed in the SEP (see Section 9) and will outline activities, impact and the
actions to be developed and taken with partners. This paper provides an update
on progress in developing the Plan.

Key Issues

The factors that have shaped the themes of focus in Inclusion Plan, include:

e Areas of relevance identified in the SEP (e.g. social value and inclusive
innovation);

e The principles of inclusive growth (e.g. distributive dynamics) which
highlight prominent working areas;

e The levers, resources, capacity and powers of the MCA, LEP and partners
(e.g. devolved powers, advocacy and direct investment);

e Areas of inclusion that have become more prominent as a result of the
pandemic (e.g. health and wellbeing);

Based on 2.1 above, in the period to March 2022, the focus will be on themes
related to the MCA and LEP’s direct influence over businesses, people and
communities as identified in the SEP:

e Social outcomes - Delivering greater social return on investment for South
Yorkshire’s communities through the purchase of goods and services and
contracting with businesses and other development partners.

o Employer contract - Ensuring MCA investments and interventions
not only deliver the immediate solutions for which they were
designed, but also go further to provide more opportunities for South
Yorkshire people. Once the Employer Contract is agreed, the
potential to go further and agree an Employer Charter could be

Page 26



3.1

3.2

explored in later in 2022. This will involve working with all partners
towards a sustained cultural shift in the behaviour of employers
towards employees, local communities, and the environment.

o Social value via progressive procurement — Using the MCA'’s
procurement “power” to create opportunities and grow the local
economy, supporting local businesses and supply chains. Once this
is agreed, further work to explore the potential for agreeing shared
outcomes in public procurement across all anchor institutions could
begin later in 2022.

Health and wellbeing — Intervening individually or collectively to address
health outcomes so that our people can live fuller lives, contributing to their
maximum potential and benefiting from economic development.
Inclusive innovation — The SEP outlined the importance of innovation in
driving economic growth. This focus will be on people in decisions about
innovation, ensuring that entrepreneurs - irrespective of background - can
access the support needed, and investing to focus public resources on
innovations that seek to address issues faced by our people. Finally, this
also includes ensuring that when the taxpayer invests in innovative
solutions with the private sector, the benefits generated are equitably
shared.

All of these workstreams are inter-linked and have overlaps.

Progress

The Plan is not envisaged to be a single document but rather a series of policy
and action papers based on the themes set out above. Over time, more themes
may be explored and developed, depending on the evidence available. The
ambition is for all outputs to be strategic, outcomes-led, evidence- based and
action oriented, focusing on making a tangible difference to people and
communities.

To date, progress has been made on the themes set out in 2.2 above. This
includes:

Engagement with LEP Board members through July and August, and also
with LA officers, third sector partners, a limited number of employers and
anchor institutions
Producing a first draft of the Employer Contract. This is now undergoing a
thorough review and will be the main subject of a planned workshop with
LEP Board members later in September 2021.
Producing draft policy papers which explore the potential and available
opportunities across the four themes under development (as set out in 2.1
above).
Commissioning work to

o develop the evidence base,

o conduct a health assets review,

o explore the potential of community wealth building

o ensure a full and rigorous engagement exercise with residents and

all stakeholders.

This will develop through the Autumn.

Page 27



3.3

4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

e Working with Inclusive Growth Network (IGN) to drive the engagement
process. There has also been further work with academics at both Sheffield
Hallam University and University of Sheffield to ensure rigour and sound
methodological thinking.

Most progress has been made on the Employer Contract and Social Value via
Progressive Procurement and these policy papers on these will be discussed at
the planned September workshop LEP Board members.

Timetable

Following engagement and workshops in September, it is envisaged that two
policy papers (covering Employer Contract and Social Value via Progressive
Procurement) will be presented at the November board for approval. Progress will
also be presented to the same meeting, on the Health and Wellbeing and
Inclusive Innovation themes.

Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice

Development of the Inclusion Plan is costed within the budget

There are potential resource implications of the Inclusion Plan, but these will
depend on the recommendation and actions agreed by the LEP and MCA and
these will be set out in the final policy papers. A decision can then be made on
how any activity will be resourced.

Legal Implications and Advice

The policy papers will be worked through with Finance, Legal and Procurement
teams and reported to the relevant Boards.

Human Resources Implications and Advice

Monitoring and delivery may have a human resource implication. This will be
explored further, and the Board will be updated.

Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice

The Inclusion Plan will enhance equality, diversity and social inclusion through
activities funded by the MCA and interventions that are funded and delivered by
partner organisations.

Climate Change Implications and Advice

Social outcomes often include environmental and wider sustainability benefits.
These will be explored further as part of this work to ensure the link between and
inclusion and sustainability is reinforced.

Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice

N/A

Page 28



11. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice.

11.1 The LEP and MCA will need to communicate its intentions and ambitions to
partners and stakeholders. This will include expectations, changes to processes
and new requirements. Engagement is already underway and more detail will be
presented to the Board at its next meeting.

List of Appendices Included*
None

Background Papers:
None

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

Citg’Régid\?rwi

Local Enterprise Partnership
09 September 2021

Draft South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy

Is the paper exempt from the press No

and public?

Reason why exempt: Not applicable
Purpose of this report: Policy Decision
Funding Stream: Not applicable
Is this a Key Decision? Yes

Has it been included on the Forward Yes
Plan?

Director Approving Submission of the Report:
Martin Swales, Interim Director of Transport, Housing and Infrastructure

Report Author(s):
Colin Blackburn
Colin.blackburn@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

Executive Summary:
To comment on and endorse the Draft South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy.

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?

If implemented the Strategy would help improve business productivity and competitiveness;
address digital exclusion and digital poverty; and make South Yorkshire places more attractive
to inward investors and as places to live and work.

Recommendations:

The Board is asked to:
e Consider and endorse the Draft South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy.

Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel

Page 31



MCA Housing and Infrastructure Board

1. Background

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

The consultant Arcadis was commissioned in 2020 to support the Mayoral
Combined Authority / Local Enterprise Partnership and partners prepare a South
Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy. The Strategy would provide a single
strategic integrated approach to delivering the Strategic Economic Plan’s (SEP)
ambitions for gigabit broadband services across South Yorkshire, providing the
core digital infrastructure networks, including 5G connectivity, to enable greater
business competitiveness, social inclusion and environmental sustainability.

This report presents the Final Draft Strategy which has been developed and
recommended for approval by the Housing and Infrastructure Board, with a lead
input provided by the Board’s Co-Chair LEP representative. The Draft Strategy is
presented to the LEP Board for consideration and endorsement.

Key Issues

This attached Digital Infrastructure Strategy is part of, and covers, one of three
key areas of activity critical to providing a strategic approach to addressing the
digital agenda across South Yorkshire in an integrated way to deliver the SEP’s
digital ambitions. The other two elements being digital skills and digital innovation
and business support.

The SEP sets out a clear expectation of how digital will contribute to the wider
economic and innovation objectives and sets the ambition for the region to “..be
recognised as one of the best-connected city regions in the country where
coverage, choice, and speed of communication stays ahead of
demand...Enhanced digital connectivity and skills enable people to use digital
applications and solutions to improve their lives and to sustain, grow, and create
new businesses”

The Strategy provides the proposed strategic approach to accelerating the
development of ‘gigabit capable’ digital infrastructure networks across the whole
of South Yorkshire and includes proposals for public interventions support
achieving this strategic ambition; building on the success of the existing Superfast
South Yorkshire broadband programme which has achieved nearly 99% superfast
broadband coverage.

There are a range of key challenges that the Strategy seeks to address including:

e Around 160,000 premises in South Yorkshire (20% of total premises) are not
scheduled to receive ‘gigabit-capable’ broadband by the industry over the next
5 years.

e To build on the success of the Superfast South Yorkshire (SFSY) broadband
programme in now rolling-out gigabit broadband connectivity throughout South
Yorkshire.

e A more consistent regional approach for 5G including ensuring local
businesses are aware of and exploit 5G opportunities.

Page 32



2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

e Addressing digital poverty and the affordability of broadband services, which
remain barriers to social and economic inclusion.

The Strategy will seek to put in place the digital infrastructure and connectivity
‘foundations’ to address the above challenges and support the digital inclusion,
digital skills and digital business innovation agendas.

The attached presentation outlines the key elements of the Strategy.
Options Considered and Recommended Proposal

Option 1
To adopt the developed South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy, with
strategic policy and delivery options considered through the preparation process.

Option 1 Risks and Mitigations

The key risks relate to the implementation of the Strategy as follows:

e Delivery partners are unable to commit to implementing the Strategy once
completed. Collaborative working in the development stage of the strategy
should mitigate this as controversial issues have been raised and responded
to early, but the implementation of the strategy may carry additional risks, still
to be considered.

e The digital ‘Market’ evolves so rapidly that the Strategy become outdated and
irrelevant. Engaging a specialist digital consultant with ‘Market’ knowledge
and experience has ensured the Strategy is up-to-date and ‘future proofed.’

¢ Insufficient public and private funding and investment to implement the
Strategy in a timely manner to meet the Strategy’s delivery targets. A public
funding source has been identified to support implementation of both the
Strategy and the wider digital agenda and the MCA Executive and local
authorities continue to liaise and support digital infrastructure providers in
delivering their roll-out plans.

Option 2
To not adopt a South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy

Option 2 Risks and Mitigations

The key risk with this option is that there would continue to be no consistent
approach adopted across South Yorkshire to address the digital infrastructure
challenges and SEP digital ambitions over the next 5-10 years. There are limited
mitigations for this option and therefore option 1 is being recommended.

Recommended Option
Option 1 is the preferred option to pursue.

Consultation on Proposal

The Housing and Infrastructure Board has overseen the development of the draft
Strategy, with the Superfast South Yorkshire Programme Board acting as an
Advisory Group providing comments. Members of the LEP have provided a
broader business input to its development.

Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision:
The Draft Strategy is presented for the LEP Board’'s comments and endorsement.

Page 33



6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice

6.1 There are no direct financial and procurement issues arising directly from this
report. However, implementation of the Strategy will require financial and other
resources, particularly within the MCA and local authorities, which have not yet
been confirmed, although options are being explored.

7. Legal Implications and Advice
7.1  There are no direct legal issues arising from this report.

8. Human Resources Implications and Advice
8.1 Consideration will need to be given to the resources for implementing the
Strategy, including the roles and resource requirements of the MCA.

9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice

9.1 Ensuring digital inclusion for all is a key purpose of the Draft Strategy, aligning
with the intentions of the Equality Act and Public Sector Equality Duty and the
inclusivity policy approach of the Strategic Economic Plan.

10. Climate Change Implications and Advice

10.1 The Covid19 lockdown has shown the importance of good digital connectivity,
particularly in relation to enabling people to effectively work from home, where
possible, and access public health and other services online. A positive
consequence of this has been a reduction in travelling and related pollution.
Improved digital infrastructure / connectivity could therefore have a significant role
in meeting net zero reduction targets related to transport.

11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice
11.1 There are no IT issues as a direct result of this report.

12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice.

12.1 Once approved, it is intended for the final Strategy document to be published later
in 2021 once desk-top publishing has been completed. There may be media
opportunities as the interventions proposed in the Strategy are implemented.

List of Appendices Included

A Draft South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy
B Draft South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy Summary Presentation

Page 34



Appendix A

TR e S

A
S

4™ August 2021

Version 5




MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

INTRODUCTION

A core part of the Northern Powerhouse, South Yorkshire plays a key part in the economic growth of
the North. The Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) and the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) provide
the strategic leadership with partner local authorities in driving economic success. The organisations
work at a regional level setting strategic policy and investing in delivering transport, housing, business
growth, skills, and economic development related projects, as well as delivering wider environmental
and social ambitions of the Mayor.

Through this strong private-public partnership South Yorkshire speaks with a single voice to
Government and other bodies such as Transport for the North and fellow MCAs and other LEPs across
the rest of the UK. Supported by the additional investment The MCA / LEP are driving the right
investment decisions to meet the region’s economic, infrastructure and transport needs; developing
more ambitious proposals to connect the key growth areas and places within the region, across the
North and nationally; and working with our communities, partners, and businesses to grow an inclusive
economy. The aim is to make the region a better place; providing access to quality homes,
infrastructure, jobs and education opportunities.

This Digital ‘Infrastructure’ Strategy is part of, and covers, one of three key areas of activity critical to
providing a strategic approach to addressing the digital agenda across South Yorkshire in an integrated
way. The other areas are digital ‘skills’ and digital ‘innovation and business support.” The strategies
and actions for delivering them will be developed by the MCA over the next 12-18 months in liaison with
partners and stakeholders, and together will form the three component parts of the holistic approach
for driving digital innovation and inclusivity to deliver the Strategic Economic Plan’s (SEP) digital
ambitions.

Geography

This document and the statistics and targets therein are focused on South Yorkshire, reflecting the MCA
and LEP geography.

Figure 1. South Yorkshire Geography comprising the four South Yorkshire local authorities’ areas.

Page 36



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Local Enterprise Partnership

The SCR Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) was formed in 2010 as a partnership of business and
political leaders. It brings together 14 business leaders, the Mayor, nine local authority leaders, the
Trades Union Congress and three co-opted individuals from the private sector. The role of the LEP is
to champion the private sector in the region and support the Mayoral Combined Authority in making
decisions. The LEP is responsible for producing the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP); which outlines the
vision, aims and objectives for growing and transforming the South Yorkshire economy. The SEP also
sets ambitious and measurable targets that will measure and determine success.

Mayoral Combined Authority

The Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) is a formal membership of councils. Formed in 2014, the
constituent members of the Mayoral Combined Authority are Sheffield, Rotherham, Barnsley and
Doncaster councils. The councils of Bassetlaw, Chesterfield, North East Derbyshire, Derbyshire Dales
and Bolsover are currently ‘non-constituent” members. The MCA and Mayor help shape policy with the
LEP and lead on decision-making for investment decisions to deliver the SEP ambitions and activities,
including digital infrastructure investment.

Our Economy

The economy in South Yorkshire is not dominated by a single sector or type of industry. Instead there
is a diverse base which focuses on advanced manufacturing and high-performance materials alongside
a more diverse base including transport, logistics and business services; all benefitting from close links
to two world-class Universities and a proactive public sector. Yet, within South Yorkshire productivity
levels and wages are low, employment rates and entrepreneurship are below the national average, and
growth is slow?.

The Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) focusses on ways to improve this picture including taking
advantage of those sectors which offer increased growth and productivity. The SEP sets out a clear
expectation of how digital will contribute to these wider objectives and sets the ambition for the MCA to
“..be recognised as one of the best-connected city regions in the country where coverage, choice, and
speed of communication stays ahead of demand and where there is an abundance of multi-skilled,
digitally mature individuals to cater for every industry’s business needs. Enhanced digital connectivity
and skills enable people to use digital applications and solutions to improve their lives and to sustain,
grow, and create new businesses”

South Yorkshire already has high levels of Superfast Broadband and 4G coverage and is on track to
repeat this success with Gigabit Broadband and 5G. But geographic coverage will not be enough; there
are a large number of people for whom the problem is not geographic availability but one of affordable
access and having the right device and appropriate digital skills. The SEP sets out a very specific
ambition for inclusivity to be designed into the digital strategy so that nobody risks exclusion from the
digital economy and the region will have the skilled workforce it needs to support its economic
ambitions.

The MCA and local authorities in South Yorkshire have been working with mobile operators over recent
years to support commercial rollout, achieving 99% availability of 4G and now overlaying 5G capacity.
5G has many features specifically designed for the business market, with the potential to improve
manufacturing processes and create more intelligent products and service Consequently there is a

! Sheffield City Region — Economic Evidence Base (2019)
(https://moderngov.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s1423/Appendix%201.pdf; Accessed: 13/01/2020)

3
Page 37


https://moderngov.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s1423/Appendix%201.pdf

MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

significant opportunity in helping the manufacturing businesses of the region become early adopters of
5G.

With focussed investment and strong governance, South Yorkshire is well positioned not only to have
market leading digital infrastructure, but also to be leaders in translating this new connectivity into better
social and economic outcomes for the region.

Page 38



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCGTION ....ciiiiiiiiiitiii it r e st r e e e s s s bbb e e e r e s e s s s ararae s 2
TABLE OF CONTENTS .o 5
LEP BOARD CHAIR & MAYORAL FORWARD ......ccoiiiiiiiiiii e 6
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ..ttt ettt e ettt e e e s e st et e e e s s s e e e e e e e e nae 7
INTRODUGTION ....ciiiiiiitite ittt e e et e e e e s e s e e et e e et e s e et et e e e sasnb e e e e e aesenanrnreees 11
VISION AND GOALS .ottt e e e e st et e e e s e s e et e e e s e senrreneeneeas 16
GIGABIT CAPABLE BROADBAND = EVIDENCE ......ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiec e 17
SOCIAL CONNECTIVITY = EVIDENCE .....ooitiiiiiiiiiitte ettt 26
4G AND 5G MOBILE COVERAGE AND CAPACITY - EVIDENCE ........cccoiiiiiiieeceee 30
DATA CENTRES - EVIDENCE ...ttt a e e e s e e ee e e e e 34
INTERNET OF THINGS = EVIDENCE ...ttt 35
KEY CHALLENGES ... 36
OBJECTIVES OF THE DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY .....cccooiiiiiiiiiieinee i, 37
POLICIES. ..o e e e e e e e e s s s bbb a e e e e e s s s s bbb e e r e e e e e nae 38
DELIVERY OF THE STRATEGY ..ttt 40
GLOSSARY ittt e r e 43
5

Page 39



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

LEP BOARD CHAIR & MAYORAL FORWARD

Page 40



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

South Yorkshire is well positioned to rely on the market to deliver much of the Gigabit
broadband and mobile coverage the region needs. We will encourage operators to invest in
the region with consistent and supportive policies, but we will also access Central
Government Gigabit investment to deliver for harder to reach areas and address the
challenges of digital exclusion.

Through the Superfast South Yorkshire programme the MCA and local authorities have made high
speed broadband available to 96% of the 650,000 properties in the region. 99% of properties have 4G
coverage and, unlike broadband, has been delivered entirely by mobile operator commercial rollout
(there is still more to do in rural areas though, where mobile coverage remains variable). The conditions
are right for the same successful pattern to be repeated for Gigabit Broadband and for 5G (although
mobile operators will still rely on 4G working in tandem with 5G for rural coverage, for example). Multiple
operators have begun fibre builds in the region including CityFibre, Openreach and Virgin-Media, but
the most important contribution to South Yorkshire’s Gigabit future is likely to come from the upgrade
of Virgin-Media’s existing cable TV network to support Gigabit speeds. Virgin-Media has a significant
footprint in South Yorkshire, so could potentially cover over 50% of the region’s premises.

The MCAs role is an enabling one, and along with local authority partners will be to make it easy for
operators to build their networks by adopting consistent ‘Barrier Busting’ policies and opening up public
sector sites and assets where they can enhance digital infrastructure provision. As part of the MCAs
‘Intelligence Hub’ we will also seek to ensure that we have up-to-date accurate data on digital
infrastructure provision, gaps, and roll-out plans to inform future policy and investment decisions.

At the same time, the Government is making funding for connectivity in rural areas available through its
Gigabit Britain programme and there are other supportive projects such as connecting rural GP
surgeries. The MCA will seek to access these funds to close coverage gaps, using the ‘granular’ insight
developed through this Strategy review.

Tackling digital poverty and ensuring we have a digitally skilled workforce demands
innovation and is an opportunity for South Yorkshire to set the national benchmark

Whilst South Yorkshire is on course to have high levels of Gigabit Broadband availability, proximity to
broadband is meaningless unless steps are taken to address the three components of digital poverty;
the affordability of connectivity, access to a suitable device and having the skills to use them. The path
to decent affordable broadband for low-income groups is clouded by deliberate obfuscation of the scale
of the problem — not least by telecoms operators. There is a national leadership role for the MCA in
driving towards new inclusive broadband models and new digital service delivery models.

5G fills in the enterprise capability gaps left out by 4G, so whilst its Gigabit speed capability is
being marketing to consumers, the real opportunity is the business market which is where the
MCA will focus.

5G features bring additional security, reliability, ultra-low latency and scale ‘machine to machine’
capability that makes it an ideal technology for manufacturing, machine and vehicle control and health
tech applications. The MCA will seek to boost 5G enterprise innovation and encourage 5G adoption by
the regions strong industrial base.

There is interest across the region in the potential of the Internet of Things (IOT).

Sheffield City Council already has a smart city demonstrator, and the other South Yorkshire Authorities
are considering IOT applications as diverse as flood management and road gritting. The private sector

.
Page 41



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

is also interested in IOT and there would be benefit in the MCA working collaboratively with these key
stakeholders to enable a South Yorkshire IOT network that could also be opened-up to innovative start-
ups who are increasingly attracted by the region’s growing digital capabilities.

The lack of local data centre capability is not critical today but will become a consideration as
more companies close their own data centres in favour of cloud offerings and proximity to
data centres becomes an important factor.

‘Edge’ data centres are smaller and cheaper than the traditional ‘hanger’ data centres and take data
processing and content closer to where data is created and consumed, which will become increasingly
important as 5G drives the need for low latency delays and scales data traffic volumes. The MCA should
seek to increase local data centre capability, exploring the potential of edge data centres at key
innovation locations in the region.

‘Lighthouse’ projects will play a key role to anchor innovation.

The foundations of a strong digital infrastructure are being put in place in South Yorkshire and equal
attention must now be paid to what the region will do with its renewed digital infrastructure. The
prospects for South Yorkshire are very promising. The connectivity layer interventions being proposed
in this Strategy (across broadband, 5G, IOT and data centres) will drive improvements in digital
connectivity across the region, so should be noticeable for residents and businesses wherever they are.
However, the impacts of the Strategy will be really brought to life in a series of ‘lighthouse’ projects
which are aligned to growth and regeneration priorities set out in the SEP. Whilst this Strategy focusses
on the strategic imperatives and the resulting policy framework, the digital infrastructure agenda and
industry moves at pace and so it will be important to bring forward potential projects and programmes
quickly that help meet the Strategy’s objectives as outlined in the ‘Delivery of the Strategy’ section.

Delivery of the digital strategy will be a complex task.

As well as delivering interventions and taking ‘lighthouse’ projects from business case to delivery, there
would be benefits in the MCA providing strategic leadership and sponsorship in enabling progress on
everything from process alignment and presenting consistent ‘barrier busting’ approaches to the
operators, to preparing South Yorkshire wide responses to funding calls (and ideally planning ahead to
create a library of ‘off the shelf proposals). This is more than a basic governance task and would
require the MCA to have the tools to deliver a digital agenda which cuts across multiple agendas.

Itis noted that the 2018 Sheffield City Region Digital Action Plan had not been progressed in a coherent
way and that there was little, or no evidence of formal governance being applied. There is a risk that
without effective governance this much broader South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy will
similarly not be implemented effectively. The ‘to do’ list for governance, delivery and advocacy is
significant and challenging, with a strong case for a centralised strategic digital function. A ‘Chief Digital
Officer model has proven successful for a number of Authorities and is an option for consideration.

The speed of change in the Digital Sector requires an acceleration of decision making and
intervention.

Covid-19 significantly changed the underlying assumptions and ambitions for the Digital Infrastructure
Strategy. Whilst Covid-19 acted as an unprecedented accelerant to the pace of movement in fibre
broadband (now Gigabit Capable) and the deployment and application of 5G, the framework of Central
Government enabling policies has also moved on dramatically and would have done so without Covid-
19. Issues like data centres were not on the agenda in 2019 but are now. The digital environment is
changing quickly and with urgent central action these imperatives will still need to be addressed. A risk
is that the four Authorities will continue to react individually, missing the opportunities for collective
action and acting at scale. So immediate and empowered action is required now.

Page 42



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

We believe South Yorkshire is well positioned to rely on the market to deliver the
Gigabit broadband and mobile coverage the region needs supported by our enabling
interventions set out in this Strategy. We will leverage Central Government Gigabit
investments to connect ‘hard to reach’ premises across our region to ensure nobody
is left behind.

5G provides opportunities for a differentiated approach that is supportive of the MCA’s
manufacturing community. A closure of the data centre gap and judicious rebranding
of the digital sector with important clusters around the Sheffield ring road, Barnsley’s
Digital Media Centre and other areas will bring structure to the growth ambition for this
important area of the economy.

Digital poverty is a poorly understood national challenge that the MCA should seek to
provide leadership in. With targeted investment and focussed governance, the MCA
could become a digital leader with an adventurous programme firmly connected to
better outcomes for the people and businesses of South Yorkshire.

Page 43



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

‘o

"

'

Y

'S

HIOMIBU | 0] BUUEI LINOS ¥ 2j0W0IH «

§Z0Z Ay eeseajeng

JIYERIOL LINOS L E10)d 55 100 10N .

SHPOI PUE SLIOEAOLILI AIMINISEYU
PEHBIP Moy Jopd o) sausgesxs (B

40 BIUD3 B BE BIILERIOL LBNOS USIgEET

ZZOE pua g Bupopuow pue uoisiosd

gep Epfap assuaysidwos aseid uing -

AbaRns
sampanuseyy) EHEI0 s eswsgdun

o SAN0sA) MEpdaidde Qnusp

syzafond jopd

SNEA [0S JUSWEKILE puR doEap 81 -

AINENIOL DG RSO GUMIUR LG
19 1eedw) pue Ausnod Eplp jo

siRna| Bupgaesy Joy soerd Ul UONEDS [B20] Y -

ABsensg s o uopEUAwsNdun
U AMARE PUR UOddnG o Wwnuo

EREI0 B4YsHIT, YINoS B YS|qEsT -

GZOT AQ saepd Ui SaLjUED uRgIn

usEanba sEUgio Y Sued aauss BiE0 -

SED |EIr Burso)s 'aBEISADS MRG0 Y56 «

FE0E

Ag puegpeodg yqelm o AmgeEse 55 -

s1ab1e) pue Ao1jod jo Arewwns ;g ainbi4

ﬁu:s ajgnd peddne
euoal e dn jag,, SSEAIDUN PV SPA,,
I iy AN [N

IO L
LR LG AGULN
JG0E H-F:_._.-
HINE TN =1y ]

oy fiomysu Lol

11_.__5_._:3_.._.__
!:i_E.___._m:E_E
m:_u:E:n_.E.n::_
6 SYEI-LW NS

JSiaaloud
AEnouqyy, el
EREIT W S8
SA)EN|? UDEACLIL]
PR 35

Wi iegu) ) Juylesu)

usApp-pyBeey)
[Enala L3

EJEp pajpun EOEEIUIERY [E30]

.J BT
L UOjEEaE Jng sdeys pue
ajeLs oy ABajeie
& doganap ___h_..i___.____U___ rruiE.:_ 1118 AN .

LABzEns
FEVEp o JaalEp
O] FAUFRIER

(e jo sujuED

¥R WA,

-

JO ETEI0) B SUEjjSM
rrln:.l ey B0,

a} PaL|| "How
LB EAGLIL s

o S| . muswsbetus
[Euoila Jspo

P syizeds ano
PUREISpUN 18380
oy dell myep s

\ ERRIPPR W A,

~

3

[FUNDJE BAEJIRL
Ay uspiuang,,

sucya wp U1 SIaA0W ApEa

LSRIngRaY
LATIER
FEUIENpU] Ausw
w0 Bupacat 5,594 BuBeiansy
AR SEEFAU|ENY

fd el anuan ™\
EJRR A a5y
PUR APARIEULDS
PITEER £
10 UohERUNG)

L L)

ETTETITR T
BUg | pein
WoUDIa | LT 0B L
J0) o9 ‘slwranas o SN
[B30] 23 T oy Ul UEaT

1....ul!.EEEunnJ
dya o) sjesse
Jojaes ajgnd

dn Busuado pue

gajsmod Bujjgqeus

r.l JUBSIELIO,. )

uonerouu [epbip | =,
pajdde jo anuad Bupeaj e _ )
SE AlUSHIOL YINOS uoijisog

K205 o suolaas || Joj
SAWOING Jajlaq saqeua JEyy

__._
...__._s_._n._.._:..qm_a_._..i&
_Eﬁ_unEHEnEsﬁzﬁi
E.E?E.E:E.;EIEH_EE
uueped aarsnpEu) UE uwog H

d35 Ly Ul
o jas saquoud InMUouoda
pue |eaos ayp poddng

x=

95 pue puegpeoiq ugebin o 1 »
ioj pajeadal 1 530905

OF pue PUBgpPEC.Y JSERMNS L.
S IYSHIOL WPnOZ AN

10

Page 44



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

INTRODUCTION

International Context

The UK Government is pushing hard to reverse the perception that the UK is a laggard in the
deployment of digital infrastructure. As recently as 2019, the OECD found that the UK was ranked only
35™ out of 37 countries in the fibre broadband league table. The Government is also seeking to ensure
that the similarly poor performance in 4G rollout is not repeated with 5G.

Figure 2: FTTH/B households passed

Benchmarks of fiber (FTTH/B) coverage
HP/HS in-country ratio — 2012 & 2019

FTTH/B leaders with 95%-99% coverage I = HpyHs 2012
M = tpHs 2019

Singapore Qatar United Portugal Spain  South Hong Japan latvia Lithuania Sweden New Malaysia France Switzer- Nether- Saudi United Italy Australia United Germany Austria
Arab Korea Kong Zealand land lands Arabia States Kingdom
Emirates

B o Bl e mmE=@=EIIO_EH=EjlISE==™

Leading fiber markets

’ There are now more than 10 markets with 95% or higher fiber coverage; Southeast Asia, the Middle East and Europe continue to lead fiber rollout

Source: Arthur D. Little, FTTH Council Europe, MENA, Asia-Pacific, regulator reports, Discussions with individual telcos, ADL past case work
HS — Households in the country, HP — Househalds passed by FTTH/B, HC — Households connected by FTTH/B

Figure 3: The UK relative to other national ‘full fibre’ performance (source: AD.Little)

Figure 3 above shows the extent to which the UK (and other notable major economies) lag behind the
top ten ‘full fibre’ nations. It also shows that there is an argument that the comparison is not necessarily
a fair one to make. Part of the reason why the UK (and Germany) lagged in full fibre is that the country
had invested some £1.9Bn in public funding and had led the field in the rollout of Superfast Broadband,
with over 96% of premises able to enjoy broadband speeds of 30Mbps+; a highly capable service that
still meets most of today’s residential requirements. Some Countries like Singapore (and Hong Kong —
now part of China) have geographic advantages that favour rapid technology deployment; they are
small and have highly concentrated population centres. South Korea likewise is very mountainous
resulting in high levels of urban population concentration. Spain has a much higher propensity than the
UK for apartment living, and it is faster and cheaper to connect a multi-dwelling unit (MDU) than
individual properties. Regardless of the reasons for the performance gap the gap is significant, and the
UK has much to do to catch up with the leading fibre nations.

National Context

The Government has seized on the narrative provided by the fibre industry and has also rightly
recognised the wider industrial potential of 5G to galvanise a dual ambition to close the fibre gap and
for the UK be a leader in 5G.

Led by the Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS), Government has done much to create a
positive investment climate for fibre operators, providing over £190M of funding via programmes such
as ‘Local Full Fibre Network.” 5G has seen a similar range of stimulus interventions, with £200M being
invested in trials and testbeds across the country. DCMS created a ‘Barrier Busting’ team to address

11
Page 45



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

the many problems that cause delays and drive costs for operators, as well as mandating Gigabit
connectivity for all new developments from 2018.

In 2016, after continued pressure from the industry regulator Ofcom, BT agreed to open up access to
the duct and pole infrastructure belonging to its Openreach subsidiary. This was a huge step forward
for the alternative network operators (‘Altnets’) such as CityFibre, who could now make use of BTs
existing infrastructure rather than face the cost and delays of building their own ducting. Whilst the
process was difficult to use to start with, it has gradually been refined to a point where ‘PIAZ now
accounts for a significant part of altnet rollout plans.

BROADBAND TYPE TYPICAL PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTION

Known variously as:-
Full Fibre

Full Fibre broadband 1 Gbit/s Fibre to the Premise (FTTP)
Fibre to the Home (FTTH)

Typically cable delivered services from Virgin-Media

Ultrafast broadband 100Mbit/s — 360Mbit/s who also offer higher speed ‘full fibre’ services

Whilst Ofcom have a single Superfast Broadband
category, for the purpose of this report we also use  Fibre to the Cabinet (FTTC) as provided by
the following sub-divisions to provide more granular Openreach and their reseller Service Providers

Superfastbroadband PSS
insight:
'‘Good’ Superfast 30Mbit/s - 100Mbit/s
‘Basic’ Superfast 10 Mbit/s — 30 Mbit/s
Decentbroadband ¢10 Mbit/s usually older 'DSL’ services)

Figure 4: Broadband Taxonomy

Also worthy of note were the changes to operator Code Powers in 2017, which were designed to make
it easier for operators to access sites they needed to build their networks and to make it more affordable.
Whilst landlords (including the public sector) have understandably resisted these changes which are
removing a lucrative and in some cases important revenue stream, rooftop and other site rentals are
beginning to drop, from tens of thousands of Pounds to the hundreds for a city centre rooftop site.

The positive environment the Government has sought to create, and the driver of a ‘generational shift’
in technology (copper to fibre, 4G to 5G) is reflected in the £5.7Bn that operators invested in their
networks during 20193,

In its 2018 Future Telecoms Infrastructure Review4 the Government set out an objective of achieving
full-fibre broadband coverage by 2033, with 50% to be covered by 2025. During the 2019 election
campaign Boris Johnson called the 2033 target “laughably unambitious” and called for the advancement
of the timetable by a full eight years. Despite some misgivings from the telecoms industry itself, the
Johnson Government put its weight behind full fibre and the 2020 Budget Statement published in March
of that year confirmed the Government’s intention to release £5Bn of funding for fibre to ‘hard to reach’
rural areas. A further £1Bn (half coming from the UK’s mobile operators) was made available to extend
geographic coverage of 4G to 95% of the UK by 2025, encouraging operators to share existing rural
sites and creating the Shared Rural Network to fill in remaining coverage gaps with new shared
infrastructure.

2 passive Infrastructure Access (PIA) is the process defining how third-party operators can access Openreach duct and pole
infrastructure.
8 Source: Ofcom Connected Nations Report 2020 published 17" December 2020

4 pProduced by Department of Culture Media and Sport

12
Page 46



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

From an informed local authority perspective, the emphasis has gradually shifted from seeking to
participate directly in the telecoms value chain (i.e. deriving rental revenues from rooftop assets or
creating a telecoms Joint Venture) to performing an enabling role to capitalise on fibre and mobile
operator investment in new networks and to seek indirect social and economic benefit from the resulting
infrastructure.

However, by November 2020 and after eight months of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Government
reconsidered its full fibre vision objective. The new target was set out in the much-delayed National
Infrastructure Strategy® :-

“The government is working with industry to target a minimum of 85% gigabit
capable coverage by 2025 but will seek to accelerate roll-out further to get as
close to 100% as possible. The government will continue to implement an
ambitious programme of work to remove barriers to broadband deployment and
maximise coverage in the hardest to reach areas of the country.”

Whilst the headline target reduction from 100% to 85% grabs the attention, the subtle shift from ‘“full
fibre’ to ‘Gigabit-Capable’ broadband is a much more significant (albeit it very rational) move of the
goalposts. Whilst ‘full fibre’ effectively specified that only ‘fibre-delivered’ broadband would qualify for
the target, the new definition opened the door to including any technology that could deliver the required
Gigabit performance; so upgraded cable TV networks and 5G wireless could now both count towards
the 85% target. Given that Virgin-Media are in the middle of upgrading their extensive national network
to be Gigabit-capable (to be completed by 2024), the implications are obvious. Instead of starting from
a baseline of 18% full fibre coverage®,with over 44% of UK homes having access to the Virgin-Media
network, the reset will deliver over half of the new 85% national target when Virgin’s upgrade is
complete. This figure that will be more like 60% in those urban areas with a strong Virgin Media
presence.

Mobile operators have been pushing ahead with their commercial 5G network rollout, with ¢3,0007 of
their radio sites upgraded as of September 2020. As with previous generations of mobile technology,
the initial build has been focussed in urban areas where customer demand is greatest, in part to relieve
pressure on 3G and 4G networks by providing additional capacity where its most needed. The need to
remove existing Huawei equipment and to find alternative 5G suppliers has added some complexity,
cost and delay to 5G. Whilst 5G coverage will gradually expand, as with preceding generations of
technology, it is designed to work in combination with 4G (‘carrier aggregation’ in operator speak) which
will remain the primary coverage offering from operators for many years to come. The Shared Rural
Network being funded by Government and mobile operators to take geographic coverage up to 95% is
exclusively using 4G technology, 5G will largely be focussed in urban areas where its unique capabilities
will be put to best effect.

It is worth noting that the Government’s digital infrastructure targets have almost exclusively been
defined in terms of geographic coverage; Local Full Fibre Network was primarily aimed at closing urban
coverage gaps and the current DCMS ‘Project Gigabit’ programme is attempting to do the same for
‘hard to reach’ rural areas. But universal geographic coverage cannot overcome the challenges of digital
poverty where affordability, the lack of affordable broadband, access to an appropriate device and the
prerequisite digital skills can be just as significant barriers for those affected.

The pandemic reinforced the importance of digital connectivity, enabling 46% of the UK workforce to
work exclusively from home during lockdown. The Royal College of General Practitioners reported that
face to face consultations had dropped from 75% pre-pandemic to only 25% by July 2020 presenting

5 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-infrastructure-strategy
5 Source: Ofcom Connected Nations Report December 2020
" Source: information provided to Ofcom by the MNOs in September 2020 for Connected Nations report

13
Page 47



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

an opportunity and requirement for digital technology to enable health services to continue to be
provided virtually to fill this accessibility gap.

The switch to online lessons allowed education to continue for pupils from schools that had invested in
technology and parents who could provide broadband, devices and oversight for their offspring. Many
were not so fortunate as according to the Children’s Commissioner 9% of families do not have access
to a PC or tablet. A £100M fund provided by Government only managed to provide devices to 37% of
the 540,000 children eligible for the fund. Covid-19 therefore created a landscape of behaviours that
could and should be locked in for the future but has also starkly illuminated the digital divide that existed
before the pandemic and highlighted inequalities that demand attention.

Local Context

The Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) considers the total economic impact of full fibre and 5G to
potentially be as high as £2.8Bn over the next fifteen years and has set out a clear digital ambition for
the region and how this benefit is to be realised; ‘Sheffield City Region [South Yorkshire] will be
recognised as one of the best-connected city regions in the country where coverage, choice, and speed
of communication stays ahead of demand and where there is an abundance of multi-skilled, digitally
mature individuals to cater for every industry’s business needs. Enhanced digital connectivity and skills
enable people to use digital applications and solutions to improve their lives and to sustain, grow, and
create new businesses.’

The SEP identifies five key intervention areas:

= Creating the enabling conditions for a digital future through the accelerated roll-out of full fibre
and 5G across South Yorkshire and supporting ‘SMART cities’ interventions.

= Ensuring South Yorkshire is an attractive place to invest in the digital sector and encouraging
the private and public sector to adopt cutting edge digital technology and innovate.

» Maximising digital’s contribution to economic growth by nurturing commercial and
entrepreneurial successes and increasing businesses’ digital capability, adoption and access.

» Boosting digital skills development by connecting talent with employers, connecting the digital
community and maximising opportunities from digital skills development programmes.

= Focus on digital skills and collaboration to support individuals and organisations in tackling digital
inequalities.

South Yorkshire’s Digital Infrastructure Strategy will build to this vision and will be built on the strong
foundations to seek to enable Gigabit Broadband and 5G whilst at the same time seeking to leverage
the infrastructure for better social and economic outcomes for the region:

= Superfast South Yorkshire has delivered an excellent foundation of 96%+ availability of 30Mbps
‘Fibre to the Cabinet’ broadband.

= Fibre build by CityFibre is in progress and Openreach have committed to fibre upgrade more
of its exchange areas by 2024. Virgin are upgrading their cable network to fibre speeds and
operators new to the region are indicating a willingness to invest.

= DCMS have indicated that they will fund fibre investments in at least two areas of the Region
as part of their ‘Project Gigabit’ rural fibre programme.

= Ofcom report near 99% availability of 4G and there are already all four operators supporting
5G in Sheffield and are on track for regional 5G coverage to be in line with other major
conurbations.

= There are significant clusters of digital businesses in Sheffield and beyond, and the success of
Barnsley’s Digital Media Centre (DMC) points to the digital potential of the region. Innovation
clusters such as Advanced Manufacturing Innovation District (AMID) are well positioned to
exploit the enterprise features that are key to 5G.

14
Page 48



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Purpose and Scope of the Digital Infrastructure Strategy

Whilst this Strategy is focussed on digital infrastructure (referred to as ‘hard’ infrastructure in the SEP),
the purpose is very much to reflect on the enabling capability of digital because, ultimately, coverage is
an enabling metric and what is more important is that the people and businesses of South Yorkshire
can benefit from that coverage.

This Digital ‘Infrastructure’ Strategy is part of, and covers, one of three key areas of activity critical to
providing a strategic approach to addressing the digital agenda across South Yorkshire in an integrated
way. The other areas are digital ‘skills’ and digital ‘innovation and business support.” The strategies
and actions for delivering them will be developed by the MCA over the next 12-18 months in liaison with
partners and stakeholders, and together will form the three component parts of the holistic approach
for driving digital innovation and inclusivity to deliver the SEPs digital ambitions.

The telecoms market rarely stands still and even by its own dynamic standards the confluence of the
rollout of fibre and the beginning of the 5G era is creating huge change dynamics, and commensurate
opportunities and risks. The Strategy frames the policy interventions that will deliver the first part of the
SEP’s digital ambition.

Having set out the policy framework for how to ensure the ‘hard’ Gigabit Broadband and 5G
infrastructure is put in place by leveraging the natural momentum of fibre and 5G investment, the
Strategy also provides policy guidance on how to maximise the benefits of these new connectivity layers
for the social and economic benefit of the region.

The Strategy highlights the areas where the MCA could have the greatest impact, which include the
SEP Growth Areas and Innovation Clusters. Providing the leadership to enable our regional
manufacturers to benefit from the early adoption of 5G and in the exploration of new ways to build our
digital skills base and tackle digital poverty head on. There are also times when we will need our
partners to take the lead and the MCA will provide a supporting role, for example by creating the
consistent ‘barrier busting’ policy environment that will make it easy for telecoms operators to build.

The strategy’s ‘place’ priorities will also be embedded in related strategic approaches such as the
Economic Blueprints being prepared with partners for each of the SEP Growth Areas.

There will inevitably be complexity in building and leveraging this new digital infrastructure. The resulting
programme will require close collaboration with our local, regional, and national partners and particularly
focussed and informed approach to Governance. We will need to make more effective use of data to
inform the associated decision making and prioritisation. The Strategy recommends the required
changes so that South Yorkshire’s digital infrastructure will play its full part in turning the SEP digital
ambitions into reality.

15
Page 49



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

VISION AND GOALS

Vision

For South Yorkshire to have:

A Gigabit digital infrastructure that accelerates new social and economic
possibilities for all the people and businesses of South Yorkshire

Goals

1. Ensure South Yorkshire’'s superfast broadband and 4G success is repeated for Gigabit
broadband and 5G.

2. Support the social and economic priorities set out in the SEP.
3. Form an inclusive platform that enables better outcomes for all sections of society.

4. Be supported by the Governance and data-driven approach needed to maximise the digital
potential of South Yorkshire.

5. Position South Yorkshire as a leading centre of applied digital innovation and adoption.

The evidence supporting the Vision and these Goals is given in the following sections.

16
Page 50



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

GIGABIT CAPABLE BROADBAND - EVIDENCE

South Yorkshire has near ubiquitous access to high-speed broadband services.

In its Connected Nations report of Spring 2020, Ofcom provided national data for broadband availability
and a breakdown to Authority level. Table 1 below summarises the data for the four authority areas in
South Yorkshire and contrasts with the aggregate data for England (which is typically slightly higher
than the combined UK data which factors in Wales and Scotland).

% of
premises % of

% of % of % of % of ELICRGY premises
SFBB UFBB Full Fibre premises premises premises premises % of receive ELICRGY
availability availability availability unable to unable to unable to unable to premises % of decent receive
All All Matched (% (% (% receive receive receive receive below the premises broadband SFBB from
Premises Premises p i p i p I 2Mbit/s 5Mbit/s 10Mbit/s 30Mbit/s Uso with NGA from FWA FWA
BARNSLEY 117029 116965 98 61.6 19.9 0.1 0.3 04 2 0.5 99.3 0 0
DONCASTER 145903 145805 96.8 455 9.2 0.1 0.4 0.7 341 0.9 98.7 14.7 13.9
ROTHERHAM 123995 123883 98.2 58.5 8.3 0 0.3 0.6 1.7 0.7 99.3 0.4 0.2
SHEFFIELD 271375 271143 95 44.9 31 0 0.1 0.5 5 08 96.1 0 0
SOUTH
YORKSHIRE 658302 657796 96.5 50.6 8.4 0 0.2 0.5 34 0.7 97.8 33 3.1
ENGLAND 96 59 13

Source: Ofcom Connected Nations Spring 2020

Table 1: Broadband coverage and performance in South Yorkshire

The Superfast South Yorkshire (SFSY) programme has performed well but as with the rest
of the country, there remain areas where broadband services still fail to meet expectations.

96% availability of Superfast Broadband reflects positively on the efforts of Superfast South Yorkshire
(SFSY) in driving the delivery of two BDUK contracts with Openreach, which saw a combined £40.1M
of public and private sector funding invested in the region. But as shown in figures 5 and 6 there are
still parts of the region where broadband speeds are still poor by today’s standards, with users still
struggling to get 30Mbit/s or even 10Mbit/s broadband.

17
Page 51



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Knottingley | Toooaialan s
,,,,, £ s L < Raydliffe Goole
Snaith

Normanton
Pontefract

Ossett
Wakefield
Crowle

Ro% of premises unable to receive 10Mbit/s!'"y
Wakefield
\

Ackworth Moor
Top

Dunscroft

25-75%
1> Il 75-100%
nuuuesiieiu
B
<o Kirklees Jrciz}
k) Holmfirth [A635] Cudworth '
s82m . Barnsley * "
Y Bentle, Srithorpe
Barnslay Darfield 4
Penistone a Wombwell Armthorpe,
- Doncaster
Js2s] 3 :
Auckley
Stocksbridg:
Westwoodside
¢
=2
a Chapeltown!
L v n =
Ecclesfield
<> )
Rotherham Sunnyside f {
2 Maltby 4
G|
Ranskill

~ [

Grimesthorped.
7

L
SR |
r 3¢ -
S A Shegfield
636 m “ -~
- g b Sheffield
g ) )
¥ /\ e " Heeley, @hinnington
- v [B6043]
( Hathersag E ; i *
: Gateford L
o a
I DlPseli;(Cl ”P/eak District / Dronfield ) Retiopd
Nationaitparky 7 [Aeai] ) \§ < Worksop i
e AN, f » Woodbeck
@ Cro pm I.L.d tab ghs 2021 rd s wm‘?}ld 7 : Clowne Esn Intermap, N%A NGA, USGS, Srl UK. Esn HERE Garmin, METI/NASA, USGS
Wl'\ co| al ase rit nance Survey ngton @ g X »
Figure 5: Areas currently unable to get 10Mbit/s broadband (Source: Arcadis analysis)
H N’ Knottingley - ¢ = ~
"% of premises unable to receive 30Mbit/s'"Y S Normanton B\ Colae ggboroug gt e Socie
Wakefield [ snain
Wakefield
Ackworth Moor g
Top

25-75%
| 75-100%
W 700 e s hinia
e
e Kirklees [rsiz]
= Holmfirth [A63s] ﬁ. 7 Cudwoi
5 ; :
. EEaIRe
o > Barnsley '
. Datfield
.nmw!u
po28
Westwoodside
/
7] b
; { g
N Grimesthorp
Sheffield ™ G
Foasegl Ranskill
B6045)|
Bolham
Gateford
Retford
£
Woodbeck

Heeley

s
A 7
636 m .
X5 7
" B 4
?
. £
’
{
les Peak
Listict Peak District |, Rionfisld Work:
National'Park orksop.
old Clowne Esfi Intermap, NASA, NGA, USGS, §n UK. Esti, HERE Garmin, METI/NASA, USGS
Whittington - Z Elkesley

|© Crown wmq 1 database rights 2021, ,Oi'dnanoe Survey
Figure 6: Areas currently unable to get 30Mbit/s broadband (Source: Arcadis analysis)

18
Page 52



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

The “full -fibre’ coverage is currently only at c4% and would require significant investment from the
public and private sector to get anywhere near the 96% availability benchmark that was set for
Superfast Broadband.

Full fibre availability across South Yorkshire only covers around 4% of the region compared to 15%
nationally, although CityFibre is now active in the four urban centres and Openreach have committed
to fibre upgrades to nine exchange areas in the region. Figure 7 shows the limitation of current full fibre
build in the region.

a Knottingley
Normanton Eggborough

" “°FTTP availability (% premises)®"™ Pontefract ] - _Rawdliffe Goole
Wakefield 5 Snait

S 1-50% Waketield

3
B s0-100%
Kirklee [s42] Ackworth Moor

[1]

[a19] Moorends

fhorne

South Kirkby Crowle

\
=

Bentley

‘ Armthorpe.

oncaster
¥«

“ Cudworth

Holmfirth [As3s]

v Barnsleyy,

Barnsley Darfield
Penistone Wombwell

MexBarough® - - Auckley
- -
° “ﬁlnni&qley Westwoodside
Kilnhurst
Chapeltown °
550 m = 3
- N &
Eccle?;eld % D &
As7 - - s
Rqtherham Sunnyside &
o pw
Maltb,
& P %
‘ Grimestharpe
26 St ffi d epng - - b ﬁ
L836m High Peak - ‘x Rotherhanm Bes6y £e
Sheffield W g 3\ G
: Ranskill
Heeley l Dinnington
Bamford rd =
A s/
BG04s)
Hathersage, ~ Y8
Greenhi Westfle) Bolham
’ Gateford
les Peak 157 m Retford
District N
Peak District Dronfield W >
National Park [Aez1] orksop
Woodbeck
=
z { old Clowne Esfi Intermap, NASA, NGA, USGS, §ri UK, Esfi, HERE, Garmin, METI/NASA, USGS
f@ Crown copm and database rights 2021, Ordnance Survey Whittington 375} 5 g Elkesley

Figure 7: Only c4% of premises in South Yorkshire have ‘full-fibre’ access today, although with the Government now
shifting focus to ‘performance rather than technology, Virgin-Media’s upgraded cable network will boost this number
significantly.

Virgin Media already have a significant Ultrafast footprint in the Region which is in the process of
being upgraded to Gigabit speed®. So will mean South Yorkshire has a much-enhanced gigabit
capability once the upgrades are complete.

Virgin-Media are in the process of a national upgrade of their cable TV network to the DOCSIS 3.1
standard which should be completed by the end of 2024. Virgin have tested their upgraded network to
speeds of over 2 Gbit/s but will initially offer 1 Gbit/s services.

Given Virgin-Media’s extensive urban footprint in South Yorkshire (see figure 8) the company will
become a major contributor to the SEP’s gigabit-speed ambitions. Virgin also have a ‘full fibre’ network
build programme (Project Lightning) that is rolling out fibre-optic broadband in areas not already covered
by its cable TV network. South Yorkshire has some ‘Lightning’ activity although Virgin have not released
detailed information yet.

8 Openreach also started to roll out its own ‘Gfast’ Ultrafast broadband in Barnsley and Sheffield from 2018 before eventually
dropping it in favour of full-fibre. Openreach have stated that because of the recent investment in GFast, these areas are not
likely to be prioritised for full-fibre upgrade.

19
Page 53




MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

" snaith

itax &
ilabilitv (ot i ¥ Nosmanton Pontefract )
UFBB availability (% premises)
Ossett Wakefield
A - 0/
25-75% Wakefield
N 75-100%
Ackworth Moor \ Moorends
Huddersfield Jop [x1] L
e > Thorne Crowle

& Kirklees

o

= dunscroft]
o ¢
AG35) Edenthorpe
Holmfirth = %
B mthorpe

:}_:}W apy W cd

Penistone

Auckley

: W“mm@

Westwoodside

A631
AS7
Ranskill
. 7 N
636m Hg\gh Peak
5N 7 K ==
N 3 Bolham
5 / Bamford Retford
5 P
Hathersagej 5
on Worksop o Woodb
Dronfield v
Beak Peak Distr 2
eak District =
eroles e Ristyigt National Park [as21} / o ES EIRERN
Clowne Esri, Intermap, NASA, NG, USGS, Esri UKZEsri, HERE. Garmin, METI/NASA, USGS
3 : old =
© Crown copyright and database rights 2021, Ordnance Survey i i g;, 0t

Figure 8: Ultrafast Broadband coverage in South Yorkshire. Whilst a small amount of this is Openreach GFast, the
bulk is Virgin-Media cable TV footprint which is in the process of being upgraded to support Gigabit speeds.

CityFibre and Openreach are also currently adding to full fibre availability in the Region with Cityfibre
active in the four urban centres and BT committed to nine exchange areas in South Yorkshire by 2024

Figure 9 shows Openreach’s committed fibre exchange upgrade across South Yorkshire overlayed on
the largely Virgin ‘Ultrafast’ Broadband which will be upgraded to fibre-like Gigabit speeds by 2024. This
starts to give a picture of the currently emerging gigabit future of the region, with the challenge areas
with sub-30Mbit/s and even 10 Mbit/s to the West and Eastern edges (‘% of premises unable to receive
30Mbit/s’) clearly visible.

Knottingley
#oFTTP First Build Programme wsbury Normanton B s S : Goole
Ossett ontefract e Rawcliffe
=3 10 Plan/in Progress Wakefield Snaith
=3 oue in 3 months
& UFBB availability (% premises) Wakefield
25-75% Ackworth Moor
Top
75-100%
% of premises unable to receive 30Mbit/s
2575 Crowle
) Holmfirth [A63 . :'\ c 'cudworﬂv
=1 N
582 m " Barnsley.
& = PESN s
= ,I’n,m,‘a ‘Darfield
. Penistone. e Wombwell
Maltby.
7
636m (A&31]
5
= -3 g
S Y ’ Ranskill
- i z d
/ 2 ot . Dinningten
Hathersage
2 Botham
jos | pBenk, Sl {ans Retford
National Park e Worksop :
£ XH ~ 7 Woodbeck
! -
Figure 9: Openreach announced fibre exchanges in South Yorkshire overlayed on Ultrafast coverage.

20
Page 54



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

The DCMS ‘Project Gigabit’ rural fibre programme will also contribute to South Yorkshire’s Gigabit
Capable footprint and a new ‘Rural Gigabit Connectivity voucher scheme should go live in April 2021
releasing ‘over £250M’® for further targeted intervention.

DCMS have identified areas nationally where it considers there to be no viable commercial case for
fibre deployment and has devised the ‘Project Gigabit’ programme to provide subsidies to interested
fibre operators selected through a procurement process to provide gigabit capable connectivity in these
areas of market failure. The procurement phase is due to commence in Spring 2021 with actual
construction forecast to begin at the end of 2021 or early 2022. The average subsidy is expected to be
in the region of £1,000 per premise passed. ‘Large’ and ‘small’ procurement areas have been identified,
with the large ones more likely to attract large scale fibre operators like Openreach and CityFibre whilst
smaller procurements are designed to attract smaller operators and new entrants who may be better
able to tailor a more bespoke solutions to the specific needs of a locality.

The expected replacement for the Rural Gigabit Connectivity voucher scheme which ended in March
2021 has also been announced, although the speculated £250M investment in the new scheme has
yet to be confirmed. The new scheme is expected to run concurrently with the old scheme it replaces
which offered up to £3,500 to small businesses and £1,500 for residential users to fund a Gigabit speed
connection, and vouchers could be pooled to attract operator interest.

Figure 10 below shows the large and small procurement area in South Yorkshire. DCMS are also
consulting on two procurement areas in South Yorkshire. The colours are used by DCMS to illustrate
separate but adjacent procurements, so the Penistone area and the Maltby — Tickhill — Bawtry area are
part of a single proposed ‘large’ procurement area, whilst the Lowedges area South of Sheffield is a
standalone ‘small’ procurement.

\

: v‘\ Askern X
k A el /
- {!'Roysto x 182 ;
nam ¢ ayston Ve 7 South.Elmsall Stainforth 18
4 / < 3 : A
Holmfirth A Cudworth Hatfield
=~
~ -Barns_'l‘g[*/ |
e ) PSR ~.. Thurn:c'o/e.\_’_A =5
{ ' e |
7\ VL 7 Wombwell /=
ES | H—’Ta‘;‘?\’wmh upol
R b\t Dearne
s
¢ -
—

N <

\ \ Rawmarsh

\
/R,o herham
5l
o = Sheffield- 54
— 3\

\
N\

: \

N

U
~Gainsbor
i

A

4

Pl
Peak Districts
N National N ..3: =
o

Killamarsh
E(kingt)o /

Figure 10: Proposed DCMS ‘Project Gigabit’ rural fibre procurements aimed at fibre connecting hard to reach locations
across the UK

3 5
sl "/ Worksop A

Park L Vg raid i e 9‘

® This figure has not yet been confirmed and was a notable omission from the 3" March budget statement

21
Page 55



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

By supporting all active Gigabit operators with enabling ‘Barrier Busting’ policies South Yorkshire should
expect to achieve Gigabit availability of over 75% by 2025 (and set itself an even more ambitious target)

There is real momentum in the fibre and gigabit-capable broadband market in South Yorkshire and the
task of the MCA will be to ensure that consistent and supportive policies are in place and that public
sector assets such as ducting and other site assets are made available to accelerate build :-

+ Virgin-Media will complete upgrades to its existing cable network to run at higher Gigabit speeds
by 2024 and is also carrying out new ‘full fibre’ Project Lightning FTTP build in the Region.

+ Openreach have committed to fibre upgrade a number of its exchange areas in South Yorkshire.

+ CityFibre is actively building in the four urban centres.

+  ‘Carrier operators like Zayo and SSE Telecoms (who typically sell wholesale service to other
operators - both have national and international fibres running through the region.)

+ Other new commercial entrants have expressed interest in fibre build in South Yorkshire.

+ Government interventions in poorly served areas (DCMS’s ‘Project Gigabit’ rural fibre and voucher
schemes, for example.)

Figure 11 shows the consolidated impact of the combined publicly announced activities by the operators
listed above, so is a reasonable representation of what Gigabit coverage in the region might look like in
or shortly after 2025.

Eana
Pontefract

ooy
] sheffield City Region Boundary Wakefield me2
I Total Future Horizon of Gigabit capable broadband in SCR Featherstone

Properties
Huaggersnela

Meltham

& Contains OS data & Crawn Copyrigh database right 2020
ffa 1o OS Zbomstack, Contains QS data & Crawn Copyrigh 5

Figure 11: Estimated combined Gigabit-Capable broadband footprint in South Yorkshire by 2025 and properties
where further commercial expansion and voucher interventions will be necessary.

So, just based on publicly committed activities, there will be an estimated 160,000 of the total c650,000
premises in South Yorkshire that are not covered by these known interventions. However, it is likely
that many of these premises that are in clusters close to committed fibre build areas will be attractive
adjacent build opportunities for fibre operators. This assumption is borne out by the data released by
DCMS identifying areas where no further state intervention is deemed necessary When DCMS
published its proposed ‘Project Gigabit’ procurement areas (Figure 10) it also published areas where it
believed no intervention was required. To reach this conclusion, DCMS have engaged with all interested
operators, asking them where they were likely to provide commercial service in the next five years. By

22
Page 56



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

identifying those areas of commercial interest, DCMS were then able to design the ‘Project Gigabit’
procurements to address the remaining areas where there was no commercial case and subsidy would
be required. Figure 12 combines the DCMS ‘no intervention required’ data (the pale blue colour) with
the publicly committed gigabit-capable data (dark blue). It would appear that DCMS have been given
assurances by operators that they will collectively deliver a high level of coverage in South Yorkshire,
although there is still the risk that the operators are not committed to these pale blue areas so some
areas could be left without gigabit broadband well beyond 2025.

The MCA could have a leadership role in seeking to leverage the Rural Gigabit Voucher Scheme and
anchor tenancy options in ‘at risk’ areas to deliver the ambitious targets set out in this Strategy.

g
= sheffield City Region Boundary P
I Total Future Horizon of Gigabit capable broadband in SCR
DCMS Non-Intervention Area
+  Properties

Huddersficld

Esri UK, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT:R; USGS, METI/NASA, NGA

Eibe s

Figure 12: Dark blue areas are the consolidated gigabit-capable predictions for 2025 (as per figure 11) but with the pale
blue overlay if areas where DCMS think no state intervention will be required; code for “a commercial operator has
told us privately they intend to build.

23
Page 57



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Business connectivity and access to fibre for the business community is a commonly cited problem.
New business parks on the edge of towns can often experience poor connectivity (and has
consequently been a successful focus of SFSY intervention)

Starting in 2016, SFSY rolled out fibre based Ultrafast broadband to key enterprise zones and business
parks with Openreach to make sure that over 1500 business properties in these areas have access to
broadband speeds in excess of 100Mbps.

The SFSY Connection and Innovation Programme enabled 154 SMEs to access a variety of support
packages and benefit from connectivity improvements. Of particular note was the significant demand
for Innovation Vouchers highlighted the growing recognition of the business benefits that technology
and digital connectivity can deliver. The SFSY Business Programme successfully led to the programme
achieving its target for 501 additional businesses to take up broadband access of at least 30mbps. The
second key element of the programme was the delivery of over 150 events to increasing awareness
and understanding of the benefits of digital technology enabled by faster broadband.

Although becoming less of an issue with changes to planning requirements that mandate connectivity
for new developments (including commercial developments), it is anticipated that within the next 18
months that secondary or potentially primary legislation will be introduced which will place an obligation
on developers and planning authorities to ensure that digital infrastructure and Fibre To The Premise
(FTTP) will be part of the planning application.

Most broadband providers that serve the SME market offer businesses a variant of their residential
broadband service, usually only distinguishable by dedicated customer service and improved reliability
and resilience (for example often bundled with a mobile data connection to restore service if the fixed
line fails). Pricing is higher than the residential broadband offering to reflect these value-added elements
but is still affordable. Superfast speeds (with near 96% availability in South Yorkshire) are already
suitable for all but the most digitally-focussed businesses, so the headroom created by the path to
regional Gigabit connectivity that has been noted earlier should provide greater certainty for the SME
community.

100K Single email, text anly
I E00KE Single email with photo attachment
. 1MB Browse a single web page
- EMB Download an MP3 music track
- 26MB Browse for an hour
_ 40MB Download an MP3 album
_ EOMB Play online videogame for an hour
_ 160MB Download 30 minute SD TV programme
_ G650MB Stream an hour of 5D video

Stream an hour of HD video

Download a High Definition movie

Download an Xbox One game

Figure 13: Typical SME user-cases (email, web browsing etc) have much lower performance requirements than typical
residential applications, meaning Superfast broadband is sufficient for many smaller businesses

It is also important to note that many larger businesses use specific connectivity offering designed for
the business market, such as Ethernet ‘leased lines.’ In the case of Openreach, Ethernet is delivered
over a network that was kept completely separate'® from ‘standard’ broadband infrastructure and could

10 Openreach are gradually integrating the Ethernet and broadband networks so that broadband can be offered efficiently within the ethernet
footprint and operational efficiencies can be made

24
Page 58



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

be economically delivered into areas with poor broadband coverage. The implication is that at least for
larger businesses, good connectivity is not completely dependent on the availability of Superfast or Full
Fibre, but these options may not be affordable for SME’s.

The success of leased line solutions like Ethernet also have wider counter-intuitive implications for the
availability of Openreach fibre; the large businesses that could in theory anchor fibre investment into
business parks are effectively taken out of the equation because they use an overlay Ethernet network,
effectively removing demand and impacting the overall viability and relative priority for a business park.
This will again become less of an issue as Openreach unifies its fibre and ethernet networks.

25
Page 59



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

I
SOCIAL CONNECTIVITY - EVIDENCE

Central and Local Government broadband interventions are typically framed by the objectives of either
plugging geographic gaps in coverage or increasing performance to Gigabit speeds where current
service offerings are underwhelming. The current DCMS ‘Project Gigabit’ rural fibre programme is a
good example of this geographic availability focus.

However, there is another more complex perspective to broadband access that is not resolved when a
new fibre network fills a geographic gap. The stark reality is that even if the new fibre network runs by
your front door, if you cannot afford broadband, don’t have a device, and don’t have even foundation
digital skills (the three components of ‘digital poverty’) the you will not be able to use or benefit from
enhanced broadband connectivity. These three issues need to be addressed in a coordinated manner
to achieve the desired outcome. The distribution of devices to low-income families with children as has
happened over this Covid19 crisis, is a positive move, but if there is no internet connection at home,
the value of the device is much reduced.

Figure 35. Proportion of those aged 15+ who can do all of the Foundation tasks, split by nation and region, 2020

Key Highest: England n= 3,496

+/- Percentage point (pp) difference vs. UK

SCOTLAND UK
77% Top o 84%

NORTHERN IRELAND o North East
“p 85%

85% +lep

North West e Yorkshire and the Humber
e 84%

83% e

East Midlands
West Midlands

e ; 0

86% wp o e 77%
WALES o East England
73% 1ep o <0 87%
ENGLAND o London
85% -1ep s 89%
SouthWest o South East
83% tee “pp 85%

Figure 14: Yorkshire and Humberside are in line with national digital skills averages
(Source: Lloyds Bank UK Consumer Digital Index 2020)

26
Page 60



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Figure 8. Proportion of regional and national populations n=999,298
in each Digital Engagement Segment, 2020, 2030

Low and High and
Very Low Very High

2020 | 2030
ENGLAND 45% 37% 55% 63%
SCOTLAND 48%  40% 52%  60%
WALES 50% 41% 50% 59%
EastEngland 44% 35% 56% 65%
East Midlands 47% 39% 53% 62%
London 35%  29% 65%  71%
North East 49%  40% 51%  60%
North West 45% 7% 55%  63%
South East 45%  35% 55%  65%
SouthWest 49% 39% 51% 61%
West Midlands 47% 38% 53% 62%
Yorkshire and the Humber 46% 38% 54%  62%

Figure 15: Yorkshire and Humberside digital skills averages are moving in the right direction but there is more to do
(Source: Lloyds Bank UK Consumer Digital Index 2020)

ONS have recently published some more granular ‘low geographic level’ data on internet usage; Table
2 contrasts the performance of the four South Yorkshire districts with both Yorkshire and Humber and
the UK national average. Whilst Sheffield out-performs the Yorkshire and Humber regional average,
the other three South Yorkshire districts do not, and all are below the national average. There is clearly
a need to address this shortfall and ideally moving ahead of the national average if the SEPs ambitions
of upskilling local communities for economic growth and the social betterment are to be realised.

Persons aged 16 years and over %
Used in the last 3 months Used over 3 months ago/Never used

NUTS 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Code

UK 85.0 86.2 87.9 88.9 89.8 90.8 92.1 14.8 13.5 12.0 10.9 10.0 9.1 78
UKE Yorkshire and the Humber 83.6 85.3 85.9 86.8 87.9 89.8 90.7 16.3 14.4 13.6 12.6 12.0 101 9.2
UKE21  York 86.8 83.3 871 859 88.6 92.7 91.8 13.2 145 10.5 93 1.4 73 8.2
UKE22  North Yorkshire CC 846 89.0 842 858 85.3 90.0 91.4 15.3 10.6 14.1 12.4 146 10.0 85
UKE31 g::::';’g:““s‘e’ and 822 819 783 80 851 886 90.0 178 179 217 120 148 1.4 10.0
UKE32 Sheffield 83.1 83.4 88.4 86.6 89.7 89.2 91.7 16.9 15.7 1.4 13.4 10.3 10.8 8.3
UKE41 Bradford 822 87.3 848 87.3 87.3 90.5 91.8 17.8 125 15.0 12.7 12.0 95 8.2
UKE42 Leeds 86.9 87.0 878 871 91.1 949 90.6 13.0 13.0 11.2 12.0 89 4.7 94

Table 2: Internet usage in Sheffield, Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham contrasted with Yorkshire

27
Page 61



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Poorer households with low digital skills spend
over £500 more a year on utility bills than those
with higher levels of digital engagement

Digital Segment Annual Salary Average spend” per month
£0 £162
Very High <£20,000 £143
. £20,000+ £221
£0 . £174
High ‘ <£20,000 . £168
£20,000+ £239
Low ' <£20,000
£0 b £207
Very Low ' <£20,000 ‘ £203

£20,000+ £268

*Bills include water/council tax/tv licence/enargy

Average monthly spend on utility bills split by digital
engagement segment and annual salary
(source: Lloyds Bank UK Consumer Digital Index 2020)

Over 20% of lower income households with
children cannot access the internet with
anything other than a mobile phone

AUDE | Number of DE children Number of DE
Households affected estimate children affected
with children (lower) estimate (upper)
| No access to the internet at home % | 110,000 390,000
Smartphone only access to the internet 9% 219,000 571,000
No home access to laptop or desktop or a% 52,000 281,000
tablet or smartphone
No home access to laptop or desktop or 21% 649,000 1,182,000
tablet

(source: Ofcom Technology Tracker 2020)

Figure 16: National averages for connectivity and implications

Telecoms operators also exacerbate (and obfuscate) the problem of affordable connectivity. Some fibre
companies were quick to recognise that blocks of flats — or MDU’s (Multi-Dwelling Units) — presented
an attractive market opportunity, being much cheaper and faster to connect as a cluster of homes than
the complexity and cost of the more traditional model of digging up a street to lay new fibre and connect
individual houses. The MDU market also offers more opportunity to be the exclusive broadband
provider, protected by landlord agreements and even physical space in the buildings cable risers. As a
consequence, fibre companies have increasingly targeted both private and social MDU'’s.

28
Page 62



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

The fibre company and the Authority will announce that an MDU has been connected to fibre broadband
and the fibre company will give a small number of 12-month free service vouchers to the Local Authority,
but the reality is that the vouchers are of transient value only and take-up of fibre broadband
(constrained by affordability, device and skills) will be relatively low. How low is difficult to ascertain
given the paucity of data on digital poverty, but market intelligence suggests that take-up in MDU’s may
be below 30%, meaning 70% will not be connected.

Obfuscation extends to how access to the internet is defined; having a mobile phone with a data service
can allow a household to be considered as having internet connectivity. This might allow some services
to be accessed (for example reporting faults to the Housing Association or accessing Local Authority
services) but mobile data is expensive, and a mobile phone may not be suitable for other more complex
but no less important user cases like children’s school work or accessing training resources.

Covid-19 has not created a digital divide, it has simply exposed and amplified what was there
already.

The pandemic has necessitated an accelerated shift to distance learning, primary healthcare delivery
by phone or online and home working. There are 25,000 individuals across South Yorkshire who were
furloughed from their jobs as a result of the Covid-19 lockdown and national estimates are that 40% of
those on furlough will not have a job to return to; so there will be a need for scale retraining programmes
which are unlikely to all be delivered in a physical environment.

The pandemic has brought with it a further wave of operator obfuscation. Undoubtably the operators do
want to deliver social value and play their part in the national response to Covid-19. But, they also want
to be seen to make positive moves to avoid mandated action (Operators have, for example, been
resistive of calls to allow their customers to donate unused data allowances to a social pool that can be
accessed by those who can’t afford internet access). Covid-19 has seen a flurry of free WiFi vouchers,
mobile SIM cards and ‘zero rating’ of data usage to connect to socially valuable websites like NHS and
educational resources, but these are all temporary measures that will not change the underlying digital
poverty challenge once we have moved beyond Covid-19.

Economic impact Skills shortage Demographic span
Two-thirds of jobs need digital 16% of the UK population Ata crucial time when digital can
skills of some kind, yet 52% of cannot undertake foundation turn isolation into inclusion,
the UK workforce are not yet digital activities such as turning 44% of those offline are under

fully digitally enabled. on a device, connecting to Wi-Fi the age of 60
or opening an app by (the working pool).
themselves.

Figure 17: The motivations for addressing digital inclusion and digital poverty are not just about addressing
inequality; it’s equally about creating the skilled workforce South Yorkshire will need

The case for a more structured approach to social [infrastructure] connectivity and the wider digital
poverty challenge should not be built entirely on a response to the systemic issues highlighted by Covid-
19. Recovery and sustainable growth will need a digitally skilled and connected workforce so there are
positive incentives to respond in the right way to the stimulus provided by the pandemic, making sure
that the people of South Yorkshire are able to fill the new jobs that will be created as a result of the
SEP.

29
Page 63



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

4G AND 5G MOBILE COVERAGE AND CAPACITY - EVIDENCE

Mobile Operator commercial rollout of 4G has resulted in 4G being available at close to 99% of
premises in South Yorkshire and there is similar commercial momentum behind 5G, with
operators competing on number of towns and cities covered and network speed.

Outdoor coverage

Indoor Coverage

3G four
operator

4G four
operator
coverage

3G four
operator

4G four
operator
coverage

No 3G
coverage

No 4G
coverage

No 3G
coverage

No 4G
coverage

Barnsley 115599 0 0 99.67 99.76 0.02 0.1 90.86 78.77
Doncaster 141890 98.81 997 0 0.09 80.46 80.03
Rotherham 122070 99.31 99.63 0.01 0.17 84.59 79.45
Sheffield 260876 0 0.05 99.86 99.85 0.07 0.16 947 89.15

Source: Ofcom Connected Nation Report 2020

Figure 18: The mobile operators’ commercial rollout of 4G has served South Yorkshire well, with Ofcom reporting 99%
coverage, although we believe that the rural coverage figures (which are based on mobile operator calculations) are an
over-statement.

5G is not areplacement for 4G; the two will work together with 4G providing coverage and 5G
a focussed capacity boost where it is needed. As a result, 5G will not be available everywhere
and an alternative to a ‘coverage 'metric is required.

It is important to note that mobile operators are using ‘carrier aggregation’ technology which allows 5G
to combine with the underlying 4G network to offer very high performance, so effectively 4G is used to
create a foundation of coverage and 5G provides an additional performance layer where it is needed.
4G is the technology currently being rolled out into remote rural areas by the £1Bn Shared Rural
Network initiative funded by the mobile operators and Central Government to extend mobile coverage
to 95% of the UK landmass'! 5G is likely to remain a largely urban phenomena, providing the extra
capacity layer where it is needed, so will probably be unlikely to hit more than 60% coverage.

Geographical coverage in [3]

Cambridgeshire & Peter
Greater Manchester
Liverpool City Region
North East

Morth of Tyrne

Sheffield City Region
Tees Valley

West Midands

West of England

West Yorkshire

|o.01

(N .04

I 53

o4

Mozs

I+

fo.n
I, 7 54
I -

[ [EH

Figure 19: 5G Geographic Coverage by Combined Authority; SCR performing well at the early stage of national rollout
(Source: Ofcom 5G Coverage in the UK 2020)

1t is important to note that the ambition for the Shared Rural Network is 95% of geographic coverage, which looks lower than
the 99% availability reported for South Yorkshire by Ofcom. This is because the 99% is the percentage of premises in South
Yorkshire rather than 99% of the geography of the region, which is a much harder target to achieve.

30
Page 64



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

But evidence from a recent Ofcom study (Figure 19 above) suggests that South Yorkshire is performing
well against its peers in 5G rollout, with only West Midlands (the location of the Government’s £24M 5G
Urban Connected Communities programme) and Manchester performing better than South Yorkshire
(‘Sheffield City Region’) in a league table of Combined Authority areas; although the actual coverage
figures remain very low.

The temptation for some Local Authorities has been to directly intervene in mobile coverage
provision, particularly when 5G prestige is at stake. The Strategy considers that operator
support rather than direct 5G ‘value chain’ intervention is the right course of action.

The Mobile Operators are typically reluctant to share rollout plans with Local Authorities given the
commercial sensitivities surrounding their activities. This can be a barrier to progress as Local
Authorities can be very supportive of operators looking to enhance coverage, or better still, introduce
new technologies like 5G. An example of this is in a North London Borough, where one of the operators
was trying to secure a Council owned rooftop for a very early 5G deployment but had not told the Council
what the site was for. After much delay the operator told the Council why it needed the site and the
Council responded positively making their rooftop one of the first 5G sites in the Country.

Apart from commercial confidentiality, one of the other obstacles to mobile operator / Local Authority
relationships are the use of agents to manage access to public sector rooftops. Whilst these agents
take away the burden from the Local Authority of working with operators, they may not necessarily be
as focussed as local authorities on maximising the indirect social and economic value that good network
coverage delivers.

The gap created between mobile operators and Local Authorities by operator confidentiality and the
action of agents working on behalf of a Local Authority has been filled by third-party Wireless
Infrastructure Provider (WIPs) companies offering to build mobile network infrastructure on Local
Authority site assets (typically street furniture). The resulting networks (often referred to as ‘neutral host
networks’) are offered to the mobile operators on a shared basis, the theory being that the streetscape
is kept relatively clutter free (attractive to the Local Authority), the operators only pay a share of the
costs (attractive to the operator) and in return the WIP will give a share of revenues to the Local Authority
partner who can generate revenue and can claim a proactive position on 5G deployment (obviously
both attractive to the Local Authority). In practice there are few working examples of neutral hosts
(Aberdeen has one, for example and Sunderland are progressing a similar solution) and those that do
are pilots with typically only one operator active on the ‘shared’ network. The reality is that there are
technical and commercial challenges which makes this approach unattractive to many operators.

The Strategy seeks to make it easy for mobile operators to build their commercial networks and address
some of the relationship barriers, rather than pursuing the more radical interventionist options, focussing
energy on driving adoption of 5G

There are behaviours that South Yorkshire Authorities should adopt to speed up build and
make it easier for operators to construct their networks.

The West Midlands Combined Authority secured the Governments £24M 5G Urban Connected
Community fund because it offered a range of 5G innovation opportunities and signalled its willingness
to innovate in developing the ‘barrier busting’ policy and process framework to support operators rolling
out their networks. Wolverhampton have taken the leadership role in developing a viable open
commercial model for operators to access public site assets that has been well received by the
operators and has been adopted across the eight WMCA authorities as part of a wider harmonisation
of policies towards telecoms operators. WMCA are currently leading an asset mapping and
commercialisation project for DCMS which should result in a national template and toolkit for other
Authorities to adopt. The Strategy seeks to adopt best practices and learning from other Authorities.

31
Page 65



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

5G was designed primarily to fill in the enterprise capability gaps that were not addressed in
4G. The real 5G opportunity for South Yorkshire is helping our manufacturing sector benefit
from early adoption.

5G has the speed, reliability and security features required for controlling vehicles, precision machinery
and robotics and can support huge volumes of Internet of Things sensors and applications ranging from
remote surgery to augmented reality and autonomous vehicles. It is this ‘Industry 4.0’ potential of 5G
that is critical to supporting delivery of the wider economic ambitions of the SEP, given the continued
strength of the region’s manufacturing sector and the industrial heritage that is an important part of the
identity of South Yorkshire.

There have been well over forty 5G innovation projects running in the UK over the last five years,
attracting over £100M of funding and addressing opportunities ranging from connected factories to
drone delivery services and everything in between2. The formula for success is typically a combination
of strong academic input and investment from an engaged Local Authority. Neither of these elements
have yet fallen fully into place in South Yorkshire. To date the region’s only success has been through
the AMRC, but an £8.5M 5G factory of the future project is largely focussed on the BAe factory in
Preston and a 5G rail project at London St. Pancreas station.

The success rate of the region in bidding for innovation funding could be increased by proactively
identifying projects and building consortia that can be taken ‘off the shelf when an appropriate funding
opportunity presents itself as many Government innovation competitions have very short turnround
times (sometimes as short as eight weeks) which leaves little time to move from concept to business
case and sign off to financial commitments by consortia members.

Whilst the rollout of commercial 5G networks is now progressing and there are many active
regional innovation projects already complete or in progress, there are still opportunities for a
well-considered strategy.

The emergence of the private 5G opportunity is more to do with opportune changes in the mobile
network equipment vendor ecosystem than 5G standards. The release of 5G has seen an upsurge in
start-up challenger vendors offering open-source low-cost network equipment to challenge the
established players like Nokia, Ericsson and Cisco. Motivated by the need to remove Huawei equipment
and to drive lower costs, even the big four operators are starting to use this ‘plug and play’ equipment.

At the same time, telecoms industry regulator Ofcom (and other regulators around the world) has made
unused and expensive licenced spectrum owned by the mobile operators (of which there is a surprising
amount if you know where to look) available to organisations interested in building their own mobile
radio networks for their factory or campus. These two factors together are stimulating a surge in interest
in private 5G networks.

The industrial potential of 5G and the historically poor indoor coverage of 3 and 4G networks means
that for factories or hospitals the only way of getting a ubiquitous reliable and secure 5G network will
be to build a private solution.

12 Only one of the forty-plus 5G innovation programmes with a South Yorkshire component was AMRC's involvement in the £8.5M
5G Factory of the Future programme, funded by DCMS. But this project is centred at the BAe factory in Preston, so there will be
no direct 5G upside for South Yorkshire.

32
Page 66



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

TBR‘% PRIVATE 56 NETWORK SPEND BY VERTICAL TBR“r PRIVATE 5G NETWORK SPEND BY REGION - EMEA
$8,000 600% $2,500 600%
7,000
500% >
., $6,000 [ $2,000 500%
5 sso00 0% g . a00% E
S sa000 300% & £ s1s00 E
T $3,000 o093 3 0% G
52,000 oo é ‘2 51,000 s 2
51,000 &
- = 0% $500 100%
2020E 2021E 2022€ 2023E 2024E 2025E -
m— Manufacturing m— Transportation & Logistics L 0%
— Nart‘ural Resnulrces Government \ 20206 2021 2022  2023F  2024E  2025E
Other Verticals === Year-to-year Growtl
SOURCE: TBR ESTIMATES EMEA  =—lll=EMEA Year-to-year Growth
4
TBR PRIVATE 5G NETWORK SPEND BY VERTICAL - 4
MANUFACTURING TBR PRIVATE 5G NETWORK SPEND BY VERTICAL - GOVERNMENT
51,800 600%
$2,500 600%
$1,600 sis00
$2,000 500% $1,400 13
: = $1,200
g 200% § 2 $1,200 400% £
S 51500 8 2 s1000 g
= o 2 T 5900 300% O
300% °
w z «  $800 €
£ 51,000 5 £ 600 &
' 200% & $600 200%
400
$500 100% # 2300 100%
200 g5
5 0% $- 0%
2020E  2021E  2022E  2023F 2024 2025E 2020 2021E  2022E  2023E  2024E 2025
m Manufacturing —#— Manufacturing Year-to-year Growth year Growth

SOURCE: TBR ESTIMATES SOURCE: TBR ESTIMATES

Figure 20: Projected Growth in Private 5G Networking spend by region and selected key
sectors (Source: TBR Research 2020)

A 4G coverage ambition might still be valid, despite what the Ofcom statistics would suggest

Whilst Ofcom suggest that there is near-99% 4G availability across South Yorkshire, this is a
percentage of premises with 4G coverage so the sparsely populated rural areas of the region will have
much poorer coverage than the Ofcom figures would suggest. Rural coverage is still a challenge for
many, which might be experienced as loss of signal for someone driving in the countryside or a farm
industrial unit with very poor coverage.

Understanding where coverage challenges exist is further complicated by the way rural coverage is
reported. The data used is the operators’ own predictive coverage modelling (which can result in
overstatement) report on a postcode basis, which can be a large area in rural constituencies resulting
in a distorted picture.

Norfolk County Council faced a similar gap between reported coverage and the real-world experience
and funded a drive-by mapping exercise to plot the actual performance of each individual operator on
every rural B-Road in the County. This data was used to engage with the operators and has led to a
guantifiable improvement as operators have reacted positively to the information and have added new
sites to close gaps. Norfolk County Council have also adopted innovative ‘Barrier Busting’ approaches
to offer public sector assets like fire training towers to the operators and successfully secured Local Full
Fibre Networks funding to bring fibre to these sites that the operators could potentially use to connect
their new radio sites.

33
Page 67



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

DATA CENTRES - EVIDENCE

Data centres are an increasingly important part of the digital ecosystem.

Whilst fibre connectivity can offer high speed global connectivity, proximity to the physical sites where
data is processed and stored can be significant; this is because data takes time to travel but people
want access to data instantaneously. Data almost never travels in a straight line between sender and
recipient. Instead, it meanders through networks, routers, and switches, each of which can add delay.
The delay (or latency) problem is doubled by the ‘round trip delay’ where first of all the request has to
travel to the data centre and then the data requested has to travel back to the user. Whilst this is not
such an issue where ultrafast fibre is used, the consensus is that over 25 miles you do start to get a
noticeable effect.

Businesses tend to operate hybrid data storage solutions, with ‘hot’ data required for immediate access
stored on servers in the equipment room of their own facility. But the economies of scale of cloud data
centres have won the ‘build or buy’ argument and industry analyst Gartner®? predicts that by 2025 80%
of businesses will shut down their in-house data centres.

The arrival of 5G will also shape data centres demand, driving the construction of smaller
‘edge’ data centres taking processing and storage close to users.

One of the key features of 5G is its support for ultra-low latency, which is why mobile operators and
digital businesses are interested in the ‘Edge’ data centres which take the processing power and
storage closer to the application — effectively decentralising the data centre to a larger number of smaller
sites. While centralised data centres still have a crucial role to play as they are the hubs of data
distribution networks, it is Edge data centres that will act as the local depots of data. Gartner predicts
that Edge computing will account for 75% of enterprise-generated data by 2025.

South Yorkshire would appear to have limited provision of data centres relative to neighbouring urban
centres, which might be of future concern as businesses turn towards cloud services instead of ‘in-
house’ solution managed from equipment rooms on site. Distance from data centres may then become
an issue, with ‘round trip’ network delays impacting user experience.

vreavsrital & o =

= Leeds B T \/United f ‘ Number of data centres
= o Kingdom )
ntic LANISH LRy /
S®._
. er
Sheffield S —
Liyerpool N
: } e
Edge data center
Nottingh C') "&\

Birmingham

Figure 21: Whilst South Yorkshire is well connected to the national and international fibre routes (right) it is lacking in
data centre capability compared to other nearby urban centres (source: Infragraphics)

13 Gartner — Strategic roadmap for Edge Computing (2021)

34
Page 68



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

INTERNET OF THINGS - EVIDENCE

IOT uses low-cost low power radios embedded in sensors to send data back (typically over a radio link)
to a central application that analyses the data to create insight and the opportunity for action. An IOT
network can be provided by a commercial organisation like a mobile network operator (e.g. Vodafone
or EE), a dedicated IOT network operator (e.g. Connexin or WND) or organisations can take advantage
of the low cost of equipment and free to use radio spectrum and build their own.

IOT has been made possible by the development of low cost and very efficient radios that can be
installed in sensors and run for years without any maintenance. These sensors are now so efficient that
they can run for over ten years on just three ‘AAA’ batteries. Radio connections from the sensor are
cheap (the radio spectrum used by LORAWAN and Sigfox!4 technologies favoured by independents like
Connexin is free to use, for example)

Attracted by the low cost to build, an increasing number of public sector bodies (including neighbouring
LEP areas) are actively building or planning to build regional 10T networks. The Scottish Government
are building a national 10T network and innovative rural authorities like Norfolk CC have also built
innovation platform IOT networks (the latter funded by the LEP).

There are already a number of IOT related pilot activities across South Yorkshire:-

o Sheffield are using a LORA network provided by Amey (which uses the Connexin network) for smart
city pilots

e Barnsley’s Digital Media Centre (DMC) has built a local 10T network and has attracted IOT start-up
businesses to its campus. Barnsley MBC are considering a self-build local IOT network.

o Doncaster has expressed interest in trial with applications potentially aimed at a diverse range of
applications from flood controls to better informing road gritting decisions in winter.

The isolated applications may appear small in scale, but the same network can support multiple
applications, and each can drive cost savings and performance improvements. In just one South
Yorkshire Local Authority the cost of a gritting run is c£90,000 and there are three runs on a very cold
night. 10T temperature sensors can provide real-time and localised road surface temperature data
which can be used to determine if a gritting run is required, and even tailor the gritted area to those with
greatest ice risk. There are many more user cases such as:

e Smart parking e Housing and building management
o Ditch and gully water level monitoring e Air quality — environmental systems
e Footfall counting e Asset tracking

e Building management systems e Traffic monitoring

¢ Telecare/telehealth

Key private sector stakeholders such as the region’s utility providers are actively testing IOT networks
for applications such as smart metering, so the MCA could consider working with these private sector
organisations to create a single solution for a regional IOT network, which could be based on a
commercial operator network offering or be a self-build solution piloted by other similar local authorities.
The resulting regional IOT network could form part of the growing IOT narrative for the Barnsley DMC
campus and create opportunities for new business growth, education and digital skills.

14 LoRAWAN (Long Range Wide Area Network) and SigFox are two ultr-efficient radio technologies used to
create 10T networks. LORAWAN is considered to be the more open standard option so is favoured by sensor
developers over SigFox which is a more closed and proprietary solution.

35
Page 69



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

KEY CHALLENGES

Digital Infrastructure Challenges:

1. Need to replicate Superfast South Yorkshire broadband success with Gigabit Broadband,;
starting from a low point of 4% which is lagging behind the national average of 15%.

2. There are ¢160,000 premises in South Yorkshire that are not covered by the Virgin Media
‘gigabit-capable’ upgrade or the various publicly announced fibre initiatives. Closure of this
gap will require careful stewardship by the MCA.

3. No meaningful agenda for 5G which is significant given the Region’s manufacturing capability
and the Industry 4.0 focus of 5G technology.

4. Whilst having 4G available at 99% of South Yorkshire’s c650K premises is a strong
achievement it hides a rural coverage problem that needs quantifying and addressing.

5. Despite some commendable local initiatives (ranging from free connectivity vouchers to free
laptops) digital poverty remains a barrier that needs to be addressed and will not be resolved
simply by making fibre available.

6. Whilst there is growing aspiration there is no clear IOT strategy for South Yorkshire.

7. The region is underweighted in terms of local data centre capacity which will become
increasingly important as business dependency on cloud services increases.

8. Growth of South Yorkshire’s promising digital sector is compromised by lack of a clearly
articulated narrative and identity.

Organisational and structural challenges:

9. Despite earlier efforts a fragmented ‘four authorities’ approach persists, making South
Yorkshire harder to work with for operators and Government than better aligned Authorities,
with the risk that investment goes elsewhere.

10. With the notable exception of SFSY and the Superfast programme, digital governance lacks
the controls and specialist knowledge to make informed strategic choices and drive delivery.

11. Poor track record of digital thought leadership and ability to secure digital-related funding
investment bids.

12. Data strategy is poor, compromising the ability to generate insight and consequently make
informed and evidence-based interventions; critical when state aid is used to fund digital
interventions.

13. Lack of academic anchor point for 5G innovation and as a catalyst of 5G adoption into the
region’s manufacturing sector.

36
Page 70



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

OBJECTIVES OF THE DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Introduction

The National Infrastructure Committee estimated that the vision of Full Fibre Britain would require up to
£30Bn of investment. Whilst the revised Gigabit Capable ambition will be able to build from a foundation
of the Virgin Media cable network so will come with a reduced financial demand, the investment
community has a seemingly limitless interest in investing in companies’ intent on contributing to national
fibre rollout. There are now over fifty fibore companies actively building or raising capital to fund fibre
build, many of which are very small operators building in confined geographies. Six are active in South
Yorkshire. The mobile operators are similarly committed to rolling out new 5G networks having only just
put the finishing touches to their 4G networks.

Against this backdrop, the MCA and Local Authorities have two primary related objectives. Firstly, this
is to ensure that both fixed and wireless operators disproportionately invest in South Yorkshire by
adopting supportive policies and opening up public sector assets to make it easier for operators to build.
This needs to be happening now given the wave of public and private sector investment going into
digital infrastructure.

However, at the same time the MCA and Local Authorities need to have a clear view of how it will turn
these new networks to economic and social advantage for local communities. Possibilities can range
from enabling local businesses to leverage the transformative potential of 5G, to adopting new digital
service delivery models for health, education and training and social services and extending these
benefits to all sections of the community.

This plan for utilisation of new digital infrastructure cannot wait until the new networks are in place;
indeed, there are opportunities to leverage support for operator network build into acceleration of some
of the digitally enabled social and economic objectives set by the SEP and local strategies and plans.
Rather than simply seeking to generate revenue from rooftop rentals (no longer a viable strategy given
changes to operator statutory rights), authorities could seek subsidised access or skills training to drive
direct social value.

The purpose of the South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy is to set out the policy framework that
will allow South Yorkshire to address the two parallel tasks of encouraging operators to provide
ubiquitous Gigabit broadband and mobile services, and at the same time harness the social and
economic potential these technologies bring; ideally creating a sustainable differentiator for the Region.

Accordingly, the Strategy’s Vision is to deliver:

‘a Gigabit digital infrastructure that accelerates new social and economic possibilities for all the people
and businesses of South Yorkshire.’

This Vision is underpinned by five key goals:

1. Ensure South Yorkshire’s superfast broadband and 4G success is repeated for Gigabit
broadband and 5G

2. Support the social and economic priorities set out in the SEP.

3. Form an inclusive platform that enables better outcomes for all sections of society.

4. Be supported by the Governance and data-driven approach needed to maximise the digital
potential of South Yorkshire.

5. Position South Yorkshire as a leading centre of applied digital innovation and adoption.

37
Page 71



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

POLICIES

ENSURE SOUTH YORKSHIRE’S SUPERFAST BROADBAND AND 4G SUCCESS IS
REPEATED FOR GIGABIT BROADBAND AND 5G
To achieve this: -
= We will encourage and where appropriate enable all the commercial operators to deliver their
planned network upgrades and new build in the South Yorkshire.

= We will work closely with DCMS to maximise the investment of ‘Project Gigabit’ in rural
broadband programme spend in South Yorkshire.

= 4G: We will ensure that our rural communities have good mobile coverage (99% means 99%)

= 5G: We will make the region’s businesses, leaders in the adoption of 5G to drive sustainable
advantage and competitiveness.

=  We will open up our public sector assets based on a robust due diligence process and make it
easier for operators to build their networks with our consistent ‘Barrier
Busting’ policies.

SUPPORT THE SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC PRIORITIES SET OUT IN THE SEP

To achieve this: -
= As a foundation layer we will ensure we have ubiquitous Gigabit Broadband and 4G coverage
across South Yorkshire and 5G where it is needed.

=  We will close the data centre gap, reinforcing the success of the Region as a place to do
digital business and ‘future proofing’ the region as more businesses become depended on
cloud infrastructure.

=  We will seek to leverage 5G’s unique enterprise capabilities (low delay, reliability, security,
support for scale sensing networks) to the advantage of South Yorkshire’s significant
manufacturing sector.

=  We will engage with South Yorkshire’s major private sector organisations to leverage their
digital know-how and seek mutually beneficial public-private sector outcomes.

=  We will augment the growing narrative around the region’s digital sector, supporting start-ups,
innovation and creating ‘lighthouse’ innovation projects.

FORM AN INCLUSIVE PLATFORM THAT ENABLES BETTER OUTCOMES FOR ALL
SECTIONS OF SOCIETY

To achieve this: -
»  We will address the data gap to better understand the specific digital poverty challenges in
South Yorkshire.

=  We will drive and leverage social value upside from our digital activities and as a bi-product of
our support for operators building their new networks.

=  We will explore new models for social connectivity, exploring new service delivery options
(digital health and government services) and seeking to quantify the better outcomes that
digital connectivity can deliver.

38
Page 72



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

We will make digital health and welfare a focus of our innovation work and link back to other
regional initiatives.

We will develop a holistic Skills Strategy that embeds and prioritises digital skills.

We will consider how our site assets can better serve our communities to either anchor
operator builds into less commercially attractive areas or to provide digital centres/hubs in
their own right, offering connectivity and help.

GOVERNANCE AND DATA-DRIVEN APPROACH TO MAXIMISE THE DIGITAL
POTENTIAL OF SOUTH YORKSHIRE

To achieve this: -

We will build on the success of SFSY, creating the necessary governance structure to ensure
that our digital agenda is effectively coordinated and delivered.

We will create a centre of digital excellence for the region, allowing South Yorkshire to
respond in a co-ordinated way to Government initiatives and to engage consistently with
operators and other private sector stakeholders.

We will make use of wider public and private sector specific digital and technology skills to
advise and add depth and challenge to our digital programme.

We will make it easy for operators to build their networks with consistent ‘Barrier Busting’
policies adopted across the region, drawing on best practice from Local Authorities both
within and beyond South Yorkshire.

POSITION SOUTH YORKSHIRE AS A LEADING CENTRE OF APPLIED DIGITAL
INNOVATION

To achieve this: -

We will seek to integrate our digital agenda into the innovation clusters already emerging in
the region, amplifying their activities, and creating ‘lighthouse’ projects reflective of our
growing digital capability.

We will seek to secure Government innovation funding awards by pre-preparing bids related
to the SEP and our Digital Infrastructure Strategy.

We will instigate a regional Internet of Things network to support public and private sector
‘sensing’ network ambitions and as a platform for innovation in our growing digital sector.

Our innovation will have a purpose beyond being ‘clever’ and will align to our SEP and have a
clear social and economic value.

39
Page 73



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

DELIVERY OF THE STRATEGY

The digital infrastructure agenda for South Yorkshire is complex, and is one part of the three elements,
the other two being digital skills and digital innovation and business support, that will need to be
progressed simultaneously to deliver the digital ambitions of the Strategic Economic Plan. This will
require strong leadership by the MCA, in liaison with local authority partners and others, to implement
this holistic approach and align all activities across these three elements.

The digital infrastructure agenda, delivering this Strategy, will involve creating a consistent enabling
policy structure that makes it easy for operators to build their fibre and mobile networks in the region,
taking best practice from other authorities who have already begun this journey. It will require the MCA
and local authority partners to closely monitor progress in the specific areas identified in this Strategy
to make sure that the 160,000 premises outside of the current predicted Gigabit-Capable coverage area
are not left behind. There is also still a job to do in mobile, working with the mobile operators to
understand rural coverage challenges which are known to still exist.

At the same time steps need to be taken to make sure that the new Gigabit Capable broadband and
5G networks deliver social and economic value for the region and align with the ambitions of the SEP.
It will be important to make sure our enterprise sector is quick to seize the benefits of 5G and that our
digital communications are deeply embedded within the narrative of our emerging innovation hubs and
growing digital confidence.

We also need to make sure that the benefits of connectivity are available to all sections of our
communities and that we have the digitally skilled workforce required to sustain economic growth. The
digital narrative for South Yorkshire must run much wider than the confines of an infrastructure debate
and clear leadership and sponsorship of this agenda is required, as set out in the diagram below. Our
Superfast South Yorkshire programme has provided a template for collaboration to deliver regional
success in the digital sphere.

MCA Digital Leadership responsibilities

Governance & delivery of strategy

Drive business Driving the digital
adoption of 5G and inclusion agenda;

fibre access and skills

Develop and deliver Prepare proposals
‘Lighthouse’ and respond to
projects funding calls

Centre of SCR Single point
excellence for of contact for
digital across SCR digital

Engage & mobilise Data strategy to

academia provide evidence
for funding
proposals

Digital Local
Government

Figure 22: MCA Digital Leadership Responsibilities

40
Page 74



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Steps are already being taken to develop this Leadership approach and will seek to bring together
focussed public and private sector skills to advance the regional agenda, building on the foundations of
this forward-looking Digital Strategy.

Consideration is being given to the opportunities of the ‘clawback’ funding from the Superfast South
Yorkshire broadband programme, which will provide a significant secure funding source over the next
5 years to support the implementation of not only this Digital Strategy but also the activities related to
the digital skills and digital innovation and business support agendas.

The MCA will determine how the ‘clawback’ funding will be deployed, informed by the MCA Housing
and Infrastructure Board, MCA Education, Skills and Employability Board and MCA Business Recovery
and Growth Board in relation to the digital infrastructure, digital skills, and digital innovation and
business support agendas respectively. This funding will therefore provide the resource to enable the
MCA to implement a holistic and integrated digital approach across these three interrelated activities.

The Governance arrangement is set out below:
Insert draft Governance diagram

The MCA will be appointing an Innovation Project Director to drive the innovation and business support
activities, a key element of which will be digitally related. A key aim of the work of the Project Director
will be to develop and implement a strategy for enabling the roll-out of digital innovation opportunities
to businesses as part of maximising the benefits of ‘innovation clusters’ across South Yorkshire.
Responding to these opportunities will take into account the related innovation and business support
proposals highlighted in this Digital Strategy.

The MCA is also preparing a Skills Strategy for South Yorkshire where digital skills will feature strongly,
with the aim to enable the transition to a more digitally competent workforce in South Yorkshire and
addressing the digital exclusion issues highlighted in this Digital Strategy. Discussions are already
taking place with local universities around better understanding the digital poverty issues and inclusion
impacts in South Yorkshire as a result of the Covid19 epidemic.

In terms of the digital infrastructure agenda work, the Superfast South Yorkshire (SFSY) Board
continues to oversee the successful SFSY broadband programme to completion by Summer 2022. The
Board has also already been working with Government in preparation of the Government’s ‘Project
Gigabit’ that will supersede the SFSY programme. This has culminated in Government announcing in
July 2021 that between £61m - £103m funding has been allocated to South Yorkshire to provide gigabit
capable digital infrastructure and connectivity to 64,000 premises which the ‘Market’ would otherwise
not be providing over the next 5 years.

Consideration is also being given with a range of public and private sector partners to the development
of the type of ‘lighthouse’ digital infrastructure projects referred to in this Digital Strategy, as well as
obtaining and setting up processes to collate and analyse standardised ‘real-time’ data as part of the
wider MCA/LEP Data Observatory initiative.

Significant activity is therefore already underway to both implement this Digital Strategy and develop
the other two key elements of the wider digital agenda. Importantly, a significant resource in the form
of the SFSY clawback will enable this positive progress to be enhanced and accelerated so that there
is a coordinated and effective holistic digital approach being adopted by the MCA and partners to deliver
the digital ambitions of the SEP.

41
Page 75



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Delivering and measuring success: Targets and Monitoring

In setting out this Digital Strategy, the MCA is seeking to deliver a mixture of outcomes that are relatively
straightforward to measure (for example Gigabit-capable broadband availability) and some that are not;
tackling digital poverty falls into the latter category.

As described earlier in this Strategy, there is a national paucity of local evidence about digital exclusion,
so measuring and even setting meaningful local goals is a challenge. There is enough evidence
available at the supra-regional level (Yorkshire and Humberside) to support the need for digital inclusion
interventions in the short term, but the objective we set ourselves is be about building a better
understanding of the local challenges, which will then allow the intervention strategy to be refined (and
new targets to be set, if appropriate).

Likewise, we consider the implementation of a strong governance model as outlined in the previous
section above and the adoption of a meaningful data strategy to be a key part of the Digital Infrastructure
Strategy even though they are enablers rather than deliverables.

- POLICY PRIORITY TARGETS

1 Ensure South Yorkshire’s superfast = 95% availability of Gigabit Broadband by 2025
{"{. broadband and 4G success is = 95% mobile coverage, closing rural gaps
P repeated for Gigabit broadband and
5G

= Data centre parity with other equivalent urban centres in

Gl erioites setoutin e sgp . Paceby 2029
[ = Establish a South Yorkshire Digital Forum to support and
advise on implementation of the Strategy
Form an inclusive platform that = Alocal solution in place for tracking levels of digital poverty
' enables better outcomes for all and impact of interventions across South Yorkshire
‘, sections of society = To develop and implement social value pilot projects

= |dentify appropriate resources to implement the Digital
Governance and data-driven Infrastsrluc?j)re %trategy - :
approach to maximise the digital i ) . .
potential of South Yorkshire = Put in p!ace comprehensive digital data provision and
monitoring by end 2022
.
®

. T T b e = Establish South Yorkshire as a centre of digital excellence to
pilot new digital infrastructure innovations and models

o !eading _centre el ] = Roll out 5G pilots with South Yorkshire businesses by 2025
- innovation = Promote a South Yorkshire loT network

Figure 23: Indicative targets to track the successful delivery of South Yorkshire’s digital strategy.

42
Page 76



MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

GLOSSARY

Wireless mobile telecommunications technology:

3G

4G

5G

Third generation wireless mobile telecommunications technology meeting IMT-
2000 technical standards, which includes providing peak data rates of at least 144
kbit/s.

Fourth generation wireless mobile telecommunications technology providing a
substantial level of improvement in performance and capabilities compared to 3G.

Fifth generation wireless mobile telecommunications technology which delivers
higher peak data speeds, ultra-low latency, greater connectivity and increased
network capacity.

Broadband speeds:

Decent
broadband

Gigabit

capable
broadband

Superfast
broadband

Ultrafast
broadband

Other terms:
Cloud
infrastructure
Data centre
Digital
infrastructure

Digital poverty

Digital social
value

Defined by Ofcom and the UK Government as a connection capable of delivering
a download speed of at least 10 Mbps and an upload speed of at least 1 Mbps.

Gigabit-capable broadband is an internet connection that offers a download speed
of at least 1 gigabit-per-second (1 Gbps or 1000 megabits per second, Mbps. This
can be delivered by a range of technologies, including: full-fibre connections,
high-speed cable broadband and potentially 5G networks.

There is no single definition of superfast broadband. The UK Government’s
targets for superfast broadband coverage were based on download speeds above
24 Mbps. However, the EU and Ofcom define superfast broadband as download
speeds greater than 30 Mbps. This Strategy also defines two sub-categories:

e ‘Basic’ superfast: 10 - 30 Mbit/s

e ‘Good’ superfast: 30 — 100Mbit/s

Broadband connection with download speeds usually over 300Mbps but less than
1Gbps (one gigabit per second, or 1000Mbps). Typically delivered via fibre optic
cables between the exchange and the premises (see Fibre To The Premise / Full
Fibre Broadband above).

The infrastructure required to deliver computing services over the Internet,
encompassing hardware and software components such as servers, storage,
databases, networking, and software tools.

A building or a dedicated space within a building, housing computer systems and
associated components, such as telecommunications and storage systems.

The physical resources needed to enable the use of technologies such as digital
communication, computing, or data storage.

Lack of ability to access digital services (including by internet and/or mobile
telecommunications). Causes include lack of access to equipment (i.e. laptops,
tablets, mobile phones), services (i.e. speed or availability of broadband
provision) and costs associated with services and equipment.

Ensuring that opportunities for delivering social value are sought in digital
investment and infrastructure deployment, contributing to the long-term wellbeing
and resilience of individuals, communities, and society in general.

43
Page 77



DOCSIS 3.1

Fibre To The
Cabinet

Full Fibre
Broadband /
Fibre To The
Home / Fibre
To The
Premise

Internet of
Things (I0T)

Latency

MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY
DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

Data Over Cable Service Interface Specification (DOCSIS) 3.1 is an international
telecommunications standard used by cable television operators to provide
internet access.

Provision of high-speed broadband services via fibre optic cable to a cabinet and
then by copper cable to the end user.

Provision of broadband access through fibre optic cables which extend all the way
to the end-user premises, rather than to a cabinet that services the area. High
data speeds are possible due to the absence of copper-based telephone lines. In
the UK this also encompasses fibre to the building (FTTB) where in apartment
blocks a fibre runs to each floor and Gigabit Ethernet cable is then run to each
apartment.

A network of physical objects which have sensors, software, and other
technologies embedded allowing connection to, and exchange of data with,
devices and systems over the Internet

The time it takes for data to go from source to destination in milliseconds (ms).

A further glossary of broadband terminology is available at:
https://www.thinkbroadband.com/fag/broadband-glossary

44
Page 78


https://www.thinkbroadband.com/faq/broadband-glossary

LEP Board
oth September 2021

Design & Consultancy
for natural and K ina
built assets S
% L=
)

l'

\

(Ui \-\ rategy

11
X

\

! ‘. i1
1 LL3 B~



i)
QD

08 ab

South Yorkshire is
fortunate to be
building from
positive
foundations

A ARCADIS

SuperFast SouthYorkshire has delivered an excellent foundation of 96%+
availability of 30Mbps ‘Fibre to the Cabinet’ broadband.

Fibre build by CityFibre is in progress and Openreach have committed to fibre
upgrade more of its exchange areas by 2024. Virgin are upgrading their cable
network to fibre speeds and operators new to the region are indicating a
willingness to invest.

DCMS have indicated that they will fund fibre investments in at least two
areas of the Region as part of their ‘Outside-In’ rural fibre programme.

Ofcom report near 99% availability of 4G and we already have all four
operators supporting 5G in Sheffield and are on track for regional 5G
coverage to be in line with other major conurbations.

We have significant clusters of digital businesses in Sheffield and beyond and
the success of Barnsley DMC points to the digital potential of the region.
Innovation clusters such as AMID (AMRC, AWRC) are well positioned to
exploit the enterprise features that are key to 5G.

Proposals set out a framework for an inclusive digital agenda; this is a
national challenge where South Yorkshire can lead.



The Government has
changed its ‘full fibre’
ambition to 85%
‘Gigabit Capable’
broadband by 2025

abed

xThis is an important shift as the new
definition is no longer dependent on
fibre optic broadband so now
includes Virgin-Media’s cable TV
network that is being upgraded to
support Gigabit speeds nationally by
2024

A ARCADIS

Because of this change of definition it is expected that
c60% of the Government’s new 85% target will be
delivered by Virgin Media alone

UFBB availability (% premises) Nophegtonl S —ponts fract
o

S Virgin Media footprint in South Yorkshire

B 75-100%
cccccccccccc B S W | Moorends
[a1s

Huddersfield Top [a]

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021, Ordnance Survey < [

This change is really helpful to South Yorkshire as Virgin already
have a significant footprint in the Region, so the starting point is a
far better position than when it was all about fibre broadband




28 abed

Gigabit- Capable
broadband coverage
will hit at least 75% of
premises by 2025

This 75% coverage is a combination
of Virgin-Media cable TV network
upgrade (now of central
importance), committed Openreach
fibre exchanges, Cityfibre town
centre builds and the two DCMS
‘outside-in’ fibre procurements
being considered for South
Yorkshire.

A ARCADIS

Of the c650K premises South Yorkshire, c160K do not
have a committed path to Gigabit coverage but we
suspect omission from ‘Outside-In’ means there is
commercial intent for at least part of this remainder

Properties
Huogerstiela

vvvvvvvvvv

The task will be to work with all Gigabit-capable providers to
maximise the commercial footprint and at the same time identify
those properties at greatest risk and develop a targeted response
such as use of the DCMS voucher scheme.



eg abed

Whilst digital poverty
statistics for South
Yorkshire are not
readily available,
national data would
Indicate there is an
opportunity to make a
real difference

53%

A ARCADIS

Whilst digital skills are in line with national averages, the paucity of
local data makes it difficult to pick out specific issues

Figure 35. Proportion of those aged 15+ who can do all of the Foundation tasks, split by nation and region, 2020

SCOTLAND
77%

NORTHERN IRELAND o

85%

Flgure 8. Proportion of regional and national populations

In each Digital Engagement Segment, 2020, 2030

84%

North East

o

» 85%

NorthWest

83% e

Wast Midlands

86%
WALES

o0

]

73%

ENGLAND

85%
SouthWest
83%

0 -

1w 84%
East Midlands

we 77%

A B—=
00

SouthEast

ww 85%

ENGLAND
SCOTLAND
WALES

East England
East Midlands
London
North East
NorthWest
SouthEast
SouthWest
West Midlands

Yorkshire and the Humber

Low and High and
Very Low Very High
45% 3 55%
48% 40 52% €
50% 41 50%

4% 35 S6% 65
47% 53% 62
3% 29 6% 71
49% 40 51% 60
a5% 55%

a45% 35 55% 65
49% 3 51%

7% 3 53% 62
46% 38 54%

But at a national level there are significant challenges that are relevant
to South Yorkshire

Over 20% of lower income households with children cannot
access the internet with anything other than a mobile phone

AlLDE Number of DE children Number of DE
Households affected estimate children affected

with children (lower) estimate (upper)
No access to the internet at home 6% 110,000 390,000
Smartphone only access to the internet 9% 219,000 571,000
No home access to laptop or desktop or 4% 52,000 281,000
tablet or smartphone
No home access to laptop or desktop or 21% 649,000 1,182,000
tablet

of those offline may
struggle to afford
broadband

40%

of benefit claimants
have Very Lowdigital
engagement

(source: Ofcom Technology Tracker 2020)

0 of those offline are
0 between 60 and 70

years old

25%

themselves

Poorer households with low digital skills spend
over £500 more a year on utility bills than those
with higher levels of digital engagement

Average monthly
spend on utility
bills split by
digital
engagement
segment and
annual salary

Percentage by which people withan
impairmentare less likely to have the
skills to access devices and get online by

Average spend” permonth

£162
£143
£221

Digital Segment Annual Salary
£0
Very High <£20,000
£20,000+
£0
High <£20,000
£20,000+
£0
Low
£0
Very Low «£20,000
£20,000+

(source: Lloyds Bank UK Consumer Digital Index 2020)

£174

f168

£239

£198

£207

£203

£268



The mobile operator
commercial rollout
model that has given
the region 99% 4G
coverage* is now
driving 5G coverage.
2The public sector has
=an enabling role to

play

5G is a capacity and performance
play and will not be rolled out
everywhere; it will depend on 4G for
coverage. The 99% 4G coverage is
however based on mobile operator
models and is not an accurate
reflection of user experience,
particularly in rural areas.

*Ofcom data

A ARCADIS

Commercial rollout of 3G and 4G technology has served Sheffield well,

with performance on a par with other major UK urban centres
(Source: Umlaut 2019 Mobile Network test in the UK)

max. 564 P. Belfast’ Birmingham Bristol Cardiff Edinburgh* Glasgow Liverpool Lond Manchest Sheffield
@ 2
AN | : 2 g B
max. 84 2 L= =R g E
| 0
o | el e 3 Mila
5| z
Dat =
max. 288 o £ o
3 ME ¢| M. z|. 51 k1 8 8
« = = I A=l Y K = © ~
81213 8 3 ] HE S : 5|8 =2

* Drivetest only, max. 444 P. — Shown scores are rounded. W EE EVodafone EO2 M Three

The same commercial operator deployment model also appears to
be working well for 5G within the Sheffield City Region

(Source: Ofcom 5G Coverage in the UK 2020)

Geographical coverage in [%]

Cambridgeshire & Peter |0.01
Greater Manchester _ 2.84
Liverpool City Region [ NNNENGN .33
North East [l 0.41
North of Tyrne  [Jl0.28
Sheffield City Region [ NNRNRENN ' 7+
Tees Valley [JO.11
West Midands |, 754
west of England [N .54
west Yorkshire [N 058



Gg abed

A ARCADIS

The region is lacking
In data centre
capacity which will

become increasin g |y = Data centres are an increasingly important part of the digital
: ecosystem.
Important for all
businesses = Whilst fibre connectivity can offer high speed global
connectivity, proximity to the physical sites where data is
S — _ processed and stored can be significant.

Leeds

= Consensus is that over 25 miles (and the data centres of Leeds
. er . -
% are 35 miles away) you start to get a noticeable effect.

= Industry analyst Gartner predicts that by 2025, 80% of
businesses will shut down their in-house data centres.

Nottingham

N GIL



DRAFT £ ARCADIS

Our digital Our Digital Infrastructure Strategy will:-

Infrastructure

Vision 1. Ensure South Yorkshire’s superfast broadband and 4G success

IS repeated for Gigabit broadband and 5G

2 _ - 2. Support the social and economic priorities set out in the

E‘ A Gigabit digital Strategic Economic Plan
Infrastructure that . _
accelerates new social 3. Form an inclusive platform that enables better outcomes for all
and economic sections of society

possibilities for all the
people and businesses
of South Yorkshire ,,

4. Be supported by the Governance and data-driven approach
needed to maximise the digital potential of South Yorkshire

5. Position South Yorkshire as a leading centre of applied digital
innovation



Ensure South

Yorkshire’s superfast

broadband and 4G

success Is repeated
sfor Gigabit broadband
gand 5G

A ARCADIS

We will encourage all the commercial operators to deliver their
planned network upgrades and new build in the SY region.

We will work with DCMS to maximise the investment of ‘Outside-
In’ rural broadband programme spend in South Yorkshire.

4G: We will ensure that our rural communities have good mobile
coverage (99% means 99%)

5G: We will make the region’s businesses, leaders in the
adoption of 5G to drive sustainable advantage and
competitiveness

We will open up our public sector assets and make it easy for
operators to build their networks with our consistent ‘Barrier
Busting’ policies



gg abed

Support the social
and economic
priorities set out In
the SEP

A ARCADIS

As a foundation layer we will ensure we have ubiquitous Gigabit
Broadband and 4G across South Yorkshire and 5G where it is
needed.

We will close the datacentre gap, reinforcing the success of the
Region as a place to do digital business and ‘future proofing’ the
region as more businesses become depended on cloud
infrastructure.

We will seek to leverage 5G’s unique enterprise capabilities (low
delay, reliability, security, support for scale sensing networks) to
the advantage of South Yorkshire’s significant manufacturing
sector.

We will engage with South Yorkshire’s major private sector
organisations to leverage their digital know-how and seek
mutually beneficial public-private sector outcomes.

We will augment the growing narrative around the region’s digital
sector, supporting start-ups, innovation and creating ‘lighthouse’
Innovation projects.

10



68 abed

Form an inclusive
platform that enables
better outcomes for
all sections of society

A ARCADIS

We will address the data gap to better understand the specific
digital poverty challenges in South Yorkshire.

We will drive social value upside from our digital activities and as
a bi-product of our support for operators building their new
networks.

We will explore new models for social connectivity, exploring
new service delivery options (digital health and government
services) and seeking to quantify the better outcomes that digital
connectivity can deliver.

We will make digital heath and welfare a focus of our innovation
work and link back to other regional initiatives.

We will consider how our site assets can better serve our
communities to either anchor operator builds into less
commercially attractive areas or to provide digital centres in their
own right, offering connectivity and help.

11



Governance and data-
driven approach to
maximise the digital
»potential of South
2 Yorkshire

A ARCADIS

Building on the success of SFSY, we will create the necessary
governance structure to ensure that our digital agenda is
effectively coordinated and delivered.

We will create a centre of digital excellence for the region,
allowing it to respond in a co-ordinated way to Government
Initiatives and to engage consistently with operators and other
private sector stakeholders.

We will make use of wider public and private sector specific
digital and technology skills to advise and add depth and
challenge to our digital programme.

We will make it easy for operators to build their networks with
consistent ‘Barrier Busting’ policies adopted across the region,
drawing on best practice from Local Authorities both within and
outwith South Yorkshire.

12



T6 abed

Position South
Yorkshire as a centre
of applied digital
Innovation

A ARCADIS

We will seek to integrate our digital agenda into the innovation
clusters already emerging in the region, amplifying their activities
and creating ‘lighthouse’ projects reflective of our growing digital
capability.

We will seek to secure Government innovation funding awards
by pre-preparing bids related to the SEP and our digital strategy.

We will instigate a regional Internet of Things network to support
public and private sector ‘sensing’ network ambitions and as a
platform for innovation in our growing digital sector.

Our innovation will have a purpose beyond being ‘clever’; it must
align to our SEP and have a clear social and economic value.

13



Questions and Discussion

© Arcadis 2020



Agend(g ltem 7
e [ J

It
CityR

C

n

73 2

Il
egi

Local Enterprise Partnership
09 September 2021

Business Recovery and Growth Board Summary Paper

Is the paper exempt from the press No

and public?

Purpose of this report: Monitoring/Assurance
Is this a Key Decision? No

Has it been included on the Not a Key Decision

Forward Plan?

Director Approving Submission of the Report:
Helen Kemp, Director of Business and Skills

Report Author(s):
Helen Kemp
Helen.Kemp@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

Executive Summary

This paper provides an update for the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Board across the
range of activity delivered under the direction and oversight of the Business Recovery and
Growth (BRGB) Board.

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?

Investment in activities to support businesses to survive the pandemic and to build and grow in
South Yorkshire is contributing to prosperity and growth.

The investment in developing a strong international reputation as a thriving and well-connected
region will increase the opportunities for South Yorkshire businesses and residents.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the LEP Board members note the activity to date on delivering the
Employer section of the Renewal Acton Plan and the developments in business support and
international activity.

Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel
None

Page 93



1. Background

11

2.1

211

21.2

2.13

214

2.15

Significant work to support businesses across South Yorkshire is being developed
under the direction of the Business Recovery and Growth Board, including:

e Renewal Action Plan delivery

e Business Support

e International Activity

Key Issues
Renewal Action Plan Delivery

Delivery against the 5 Renewal Action Plan priorities has been progressed as
follows:
Priority 1 - A Relief Fund, providing financial support to businesses

The Additional Restrictions Grant has been administered directly by Local
Authorities and covered a number of schemes to provide Covid relief and support
to businesses across South Yorkshire; initially focussing on enabling businesses to
survive the pandemic.

The most recent initiatives have focussed on supporting businesses to adapt and
thrive and have provided grants to improve productivity and digital innovation;
significant support to businesses to engage with this process has been provided
through the Renewal Action Plan Business Advisors. These schemes have
distributed £5.78m in grants to businesses with an anticipation of 642 jobs created
across the region.

Priority 2 — Extending regional access to advisory and specialist support

16 Renewal Action Plan Business Advisors are now in post and are embedded
within each of the local authorities. To date, 400 business interventions have been
undertaken across the 4 Local Authority areas, 270 of these are micro businesses
(0-5 employees), with the remaining 130 being of Small to Medium sized
Enterprises and large companies (over 250 employees).

Priority 3 - Access to Digital adoption and upskilling support

A soft-landing programme is in development and will be brought to the Board for
recommendation in due course.

The approach to providing digital and tech sector specific wrap around support and
engagement is also being developed.

Priority 4 - Supply Development support

A supply chain mapping exercise has been undertaken by Sheffield University
students in order to understand the regional clusters and the number of companies
that are involved at specific levels of the supply chain in rail, construction,
aerospace, automotive, energy, food and drink, defence, space, logistics, design
and digital.

Page 94



2.1.6

2.2

221

222

2.3
231

Supply Chain Advisors are in post in three of the Local Authorities and are
progressing development of the supply chain readiness elements.

The first supply chain event took place at the end of May and received over 70
delegates with an interest in understanding how local authorities procure goods
and services. A programme of events and supply chain masterclasses has been
developed and will be delivered during the remainder of 2021 and beyond.

Priority 5 - Marketing Activity - Positive messaging and comms on initiatives

Detailed marketing plans have been developed and are being used to expand
messaging across South Yorkshire and beyond.

Business Support

Growth Hub Activity

Business support and guidance continues to be delivered via the MCA Gateway and
through the Business Advisors retained under the Renewal Action Plan scheme, alongside
a range of interventions such as the Sheffield Innovation Programme, Skills Bank, Support
for Start-ups and the emerging Ownership Hub amongst others.

Most recently, the Peer Networks contract has been awarded to Winning Pitch and will
provide support, advice and training to assist businesses face the challenges they are
experiencing in the wake of the pandemic. Funding was received to deliver 8 cohorts of
peer network support to SMEs in the region and a soft launch of the programme will
commence in September.

Business Pipeline

The Board have maintained an overview of activity in relation to the potential large
innovative growth projects that have come to form the Business Pipeline, including
reviewing potential projects to accept into the assurance process. In parallel to this the
Board have overseen the development of a set of criteria that will make it transparent for
businesses to engage with this support.

Projects are being developed at pace and it is expected that approvals for funding will be
coming forward to the BRGB and the MCA.

International Activity

India

Work continues in developing a South Yorkshire India Trade Strategy and approvals from
the Business Recovery and Growth Board supported ongoing activity through the Growth
Champions and the development of a South Yorkshire India Advisory Board.

Growth Champions had held 47 meetings throughout April through the Virtual Trade
Mission and feedback from these meetings has been positive in terms of trade and
business partnerships.

Initial plans for the South Yorkshire India Advisory Board had been to meet in June/July
and launch a business network, however, the growth of the pandemic in India prompted
advice that this was delayed until later in the autumn when it was hoped the virus would
be more under control. On this basis, the first South Yorkshire India Advisory Board has
been scheduled for November when it was felt it would be more appropriate to strengthen
relationships with India.

Page 95



2.3.2 China

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

The South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority has established the groundwork for a
China facing Trade and Investment Strategy, although the Covid pandemic has brought
some delay to the development of the approach. At the last board meeting in June, the
Board reviewed the work that had taken place so far and discussed an approach to
recommence development of a Chine trade strategy.

The Business Recovery and Growth Board recognised there are areas of concern raised
in the UK by government, industry and media, including Openness of the Chinese Market
to UK exports; UK brands and investments encountering commercial, political and media
pressure to influence UK political position and possible access to security and national-
interest technology. In light of this, the Board resolved that it was prudent to consider a
short-term limitation in the region’s interactions which would be secure for private South
Yorkshire commercial interests and remove the region from political criticism.

The Board has agreed it is now timely to revisit our position as at October 2019 and phase
planned activity over the next 6 to 9 months to include:
e To establish a South Yorkshire China Forum (nhame to be confirmed)
e To develop a phased Marketing & Communications plan both raising the profile of
SCR activity across UK and in our target China Region/Sectors
e To establish baseline indicators and metrics to allow measurement of impact of the
forward approach

e To use the SYCF to support the market development strategy with a focus on 4
areas of activity:
o Developing Regional relationships which will include Culture, Heritage and
Tourism
o Support SCR Businesses wanting to build export relationships in the target
region
o Grow inward investment opportunities
o Increase the % of Chinese students choosing Sheffield when studying in
the UK
This will lead into the development of a more structured programme of activity in 2022/23

Options Considered and Recommended Proposal

Option 1
This is not an options paper.

Consultation on Proposal

N/A

Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision
N/A

Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice

N/A

Legal Implications and Advice

N/A

Page 96



8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

12.1

Human Resources Implications and Advice

N/A

Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice

N/A

Climate Change Implications and Advice

N/A

Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice
N/A

Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice

N/A

List of Appendices Included

None

Background Papers

None

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

City Region

Local Enterprise Partnership
09 September 2021

Mayor’s Update

Purpose of Report

To provide LEP Board Members with an update on key Mayoral activity relating to the
economic agenda.

1. The Comprehensive Spending Review, Integrated Rail Plan and Levelling Up

Three long awaited, and interlinked key Government documents are due to be
published this Autumn. Expectations are rightly extremely high for the long-awaited
Levelling Up White Paper, the Comprehensive Spending Review and the Integrated
Rail Plan.

Whilst | welcome the Government’s commitment to levelling up, | remain deeply
concerned that so far, it's more slogan than substance, without even a definition of
what they are trying to achieve. With the pandemic having shone such a spotlight
on the starkness and scale of inequalities in our country there is a need for a clear,
tangible plan, backed by substantive investment, to begin to tackle this systemic
issue.

Given the promises and commitments that have been made, I'll be judging
government by their deeds rather than just their words, to level up South Yorkshire.
The continued and unacceptable delay to the publication of the Integrated Rail
Plan, which we’ve been waiting nine months for, further fuels the suspicion that
what is being planned falls far short of the promises that were made. In the
absence of this document, | struggle to see how this government can claim to be
serious about ‘levelling up’ the North when there are so many question marks about
something as basic as improving rail connections between our towns and cities.

Colleagues on the MCA, LEP and | are not simply sat waiting for Government.
We’re focused on doing everything we can to deliver the ambitious and
transformative vision in our Strategic Economic Plan and to create a stronger,
greener, and fairer region in our renewal from the pandemic. Some highlights of
this recent activity are summarised below.

Page 99



City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement Bid

Partners across the region have been working together over the summer to
produce our bid for a City Region Transport Settlement (CRSTS). South Yorkshire
Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) is one of eight Combined Authorities eligible for
this £4.2bn fund and is required to submit its draft bid to Government by the w/c 6™
September and its final proposal by the 15,

The development of South Yorkshire’s submission to what is an extremely
significant funding opportunity has represented a herculean effort. In preparing our
submission my overriding concern has been to preserve the integrity of the bid to
ensure that we meet the criteria laid down by government as well as both local
needs and South Yorkshire’s strategic challenges. It has been a balancing act!

Our proposed programme will improve transport in South Yorkshire’s, with a
particular focus on transforming public transport and active travel, connecting our
people and communities to opportunity, enabling them to make sustainable
choices.

Whilst the submission of our bid is an important milestone, it is only the beginning
of a much bigger process to secure the investment so urgently needed and then to
deliver it. I'll be fighting to secure every penny needed to realise our ambitions and
I’'m confident the strength of our bid means we are well placed to succeed.

Local skills support for South Yorkshire’s Learners

At the beginning of August our Mayoral Combined Authority took a significant step
forward in its devolution journey by assuming responsibility for £42m of skills
funding for those aged 19 and over, known as the Adult Education Budget (AEB).
Skills and adult education are critical to building a bigger and better economy for
our region — giving people the opportunity they need to prosper and helping
businesses grow.

Local control over the AEB will help people improve their skills to progress in work,
stay in work or get back to work. It will also mean that the local skills system can be
transformed to focus on the needs of South Yorkshire’s local businesses and the
industries that are predicted to grow in the coming years.

Local control of the AEB has also meant that South Yorkshire based providers now
comprise 46% of all providers, up from 8% previously, following a robust
procurement exercise which has been ongoing since December 2020.

We will continue to work with training providers to shape South Yorkshire’s skills
agenda to meet our region’s unique needs. Together we will support our residents
to get good jobs and progress their careers in South Yorkshire’s key sectors and
make learning more inclusive.

South Yorkshire Health and Wellbeing Mayoral Community Fund
The past 18 months have been extremely tough for so many, and our community

groups have done tremendous work throughout the pandemic. If Covid has shown
us anything at all, it's how precious health and wellbeing is.

Page 100



For these reasons I’'m really pleased to have invested £200,000 to launch the new
South Yorkshire Health and Wellbeing Mayoral Community Fund. Providing grants
for community groups of up to £10,000 it will seek to address key issues such as:

¢ Mental health in disproportionately affected communities across South
Yorkshire;

e Funding community organisations supporting social and green prescribing;

e Physical well-being and mental health; and

e [Engaging young people in activities addressing health and well-being.

The fund will be administered by the South Yorkshire’s Community Foundation and
more details on how to apply are available here. We are continuing to monitor
applications and demand for the fund and are exploring potential mechanisms to
extend with additional investment, including from the private sector.

Page 101


https://www.sycf.org.uk/grants-to-organisations/south-yorkshire-health-and-wellbeing-mayoral-community-fund/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 9

Eitg Reg |o\'ﬁ

Local Enterprise Partnership
09 September 2021

CEX Update

Purpose of Report

To provide LEP Board Members with a general update on activity being undertaken by
the LEP outside of the agenda items under discussion.

1. Northern Powerhouse Investment Fund
116 South Yorkshire businesses have secured more than £31m of investment from
the Northern Powerhouse Investment Fund (NPIF), in addition to £24m attracted as
private sector co-investment. NPIF is a collaboration between the British Business
Bank and ten LEPs in the North and supports new and growing SMES, creates jobs
and attracts private sector investment. Neil MacDonald represents the LEP on the
NPIF Strategic Oversight Board.

2. MADE Smarter Review
SCR MCA is the lead organisation and accountable body for the Yorkshire and
Humber Made Smarter programme. Following MCA acceptance in June, a
Memorandum of Understanding with BEIS will enable the procurement of a delivery
partner. The programme has ambitious targets, considering the relatively small pot
(E1.5m) available, aiming to reach 500 SMEs across Yorkshire and Humber. A
number of requirements will have to be delivered including: digital road mapping,
fully funded projects, funded projects through Cap Ex Grant, digital internships
(graduates and students), and leadership and management training to a number of
cohorts across the region.

3. Quarterly Economic Survey (QES)
The MCA and LEP continue to work with South Yorkshire’s Chambers of
Commerce to support the QES. Results give a snapshot of business sentiment and
can help to inform strategic decision-making. Quarter 2 results showed positive
signs as the economy opened up and companies grew in confidence. The Quarter
3 survey runs from 23 August to 13 September.

4. Support for the LEP Review
South Yorkshire MCA and LEP, alongside Cambridgeshire, West of England, Tees
Valley and West Yorkshire, support the current LEP Review. It is regarded by the
MCA and LEP as an opportunity to strengthen the role of business aligned to MCAs
and local government decision making. An approach will be agreed with the

Page 103


https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/south-yorkshire-business-boosted-with-northern-powerhouse-funding/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/south-yorkshire-business-boosted-with-northern-powerhouse-funding/

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) to ensure that we
can capitalise on progress our LEP and MCA have already made.

South Yorkshire Music Board

A review of the Sheffield City Region Music Board governance is currently being
undertaken by the MCA and adverts for the roles of Chair and Vice Chair will go out
in the autumn. Penny Blackham, who stepped down as Chair in July, led the board
through an unprecedented time, and the Mayor has thanked her for her work
representing the region’s music industry.

Business Advisory Group

The South Yorkshire Business Advisory Group continues to bring key business
representative organisations and other business leaders together to inform, assist
and enhance the work of the LEP and MCA. The group cover a range of business
topics that the LEP and MCA are directly involved with and where in-depth
business input strengthens its thinking, supports delivery and secures backing. The
Group is chaired by LEP Chair James Muir alongside Vice Chairs Dan Fell and Nell
MacDonald.

Page 104



	Agenda
	3 Notes of last meeting
	4 Government Innovation Strategy
	5 Inclusion Plan for South Yorkshire
	6 South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy
	Appendix A - South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy
	Appendix B - Digital Infrastructure Strategy Presentation

	7 Business Recovery and Growth Board Summary Paper
	8 Mayoral Update
	9 Chief Executive's Update

